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CULUMBER, HARVEY 
& ASSOCIATES, P.A. 

Certified Public Accountaots and Consul1an1, 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Aldermen 
City of Ocean Springs 
Ocean Springs, Mississippi 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental act1v1t1es, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Ocean Springs, 
Missi ssippi ("'City"), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2015, which collectively comprise the City ' s 
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards , issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An aud it involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts in the financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity ' s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity ' s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such 
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

Opinions 

• In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City, as of September 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position 
and cash flows, thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. 
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Other Matters 

Required S11pplementa1y Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management"s 
discussion and analysis on pages 8 through 14, the schedule of budgetary comparison information on pages 51 
through 53 and the schedules of the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability and PERS 
contributions on pages 54 through 55 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational , economic, or historical context. 

We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during 
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or 
provide any assurance. 

Supplemental and Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City' s basic financial statements. The introductory section, the combining nonmajor fund financial 
statements, the schedule of long-term debt, surety bonds, and statistical schedules are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and 
Budget Circular A-133 , Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, are is also not a 
required part of the financial statements. 

The combining statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to 
the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material 
respects in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

The introductory section, the schedule of long-term debt, surety bonds, and statistical section have not been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Governmellt Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 25, 2016, on our 
consideration of the City' s internal contro l over financia l reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is 
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be 
considered in assessing the results of our audit. 

Culumber, Harvey and Associates, PA 
Certified Public Accountants 

Gulfport, Mississippi 
July 25, 2016 
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CITY OF OCEAl"I SPRJNGS, MISSISSIPPI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISC USSION AN D ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

Introduction 

The followi ng Management ' s Discussion and Analysis of the City of Ocean Springs's ("the City") activities and 
financial performance provides an introduction to the financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2015. The information contained in this Management's Discussion and Analysis has been prepared 
by management and should be considered in conjunction with the financial statements and the notes thereto, 
which follow this section. -

The components of the annual financial report include: 

• Management ' s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 
• Basic Financial Statements 
• Required Supplemental Information (RSI) 

The l'vID&A introduces the basic financial statements and provides an analytical overview of the City ' s financial 
activities. This l'vID&A provides comparisons with the previous year. 

Financial and Economical Highlights 

• The City's assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows at 
September 30, 2015 by $37,478,302 and by $50,496,443 at September 30, 2014, with the large decrease 
mainly attributable to the implementation ofGASB 68 on net pension obligation. 

• The total net position increased by $1 ,141 ,613 for 2015, and increased by $2,937,787 for 2014; and of 
these amounts, governmental activities increased by $748,423, while business type activities increased 
by $393,190 during 2015, even after transferring $500,000 to the General fund . During 2014, 
governmental activities net position increased $2,778,925, and business type activities net position 
increased $158,862. 

• The City' s governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of $4,742,451 for 2015 , and 
$2,966,736 for 2014, an increase of$1 ,775,715 . 

• Unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $2,813,505 for 2015 or 21.2% of total general fund 
expenditures, compared to $1 ,261,087 for 2014 or 9 .5% of total general fund expenditures, as a result of 
conservative fiscal management. 

• The City was voted Best Place to Live in Mississippi, Best Town for Weekend Visit, and Best Downtown 
Area in Mississippi Magazine for 2016. 

• Smithsonian Magazine named Ocean Springs as one of the top 20 Small Towns to visit in the nation, 
and Coastal Magazine named the City the top five in the Happiest Seaside Town in 2015. 

• The City recently received designation from Mississippi Department of Transportation as a Scenic 
Byway. 

• In 2013 Ocean Springs was one of three Great American Main Street award winners in the United States. 

• The City hosts the annual Peter Anderson Arts and Crafts Festival in November and it is known as the 
large t fine arts festi val in the state with over 400 artists, crafters and food vendors along with over 
100,000 visitors in attendance. 
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CITY OF OCEAl"I SPRINGS, MISSISSIPPI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISC USSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The City 's basic financial statements comprise the following elements: 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City's 
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City ' s assets and liabilities, with the difference 
between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful 
indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City ' s net position changed during the most 
recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the 
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this 
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. 

Both government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by 
taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover 
all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (bu iness-type activities). The 
governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety, public works, health & welfare, 
economic development, and culture and recreation. The major business-type activities of the City include 
providing water and sewer services to the residents of the City of Ocean Springs. 

Fund Financial Statements 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated 
for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting not 
only to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements but also to help control and 
manage money for particular purposes or to show it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, 
and other money. All of the funds of the City can be divided into two categories: 

• Governmental funds 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial 
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near term inflows and outflows of 
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. 
Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near term financing requirements. 

The City maintains twenty-two individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in 
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund 
balances for the general fund, and the food and beverage tax fund, which are determined to be major 
funds, and the other governmental funds for the purpose of consistency. The general obligation debt 
service fund was also selected by the City to be reported as a major fund due to its importance to readers. 

• Proprietary Fund 

The City maintains for enterprise funds, which is only one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise funds 
are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide 
financial statements. Information is presented in the proprietary statement of net · position and the 
statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, along with a statement of cash flow. 

9 



CITY OF OCEAN SPRINGS, MISSISSIPPI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

Notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to the full understanding of the 
data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. Refer to Note 1 for more detailed 
information on the elements of the financial statements. 

Other Information 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain other 
supplemental information. The budget comparison for the general fund is presented immediately after the basic 
financial statements as required supplemental information. 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

The table below presents the City's condensed statement of net position as of September 30, 2015 and 2014. 

GO\-ernment Wide Statement of Net Position 

Governmental Business-ty pe Total Primary 

Activities Activities Government 

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 

Assets: 

Current and other assets $ 5,652,961 s 3,955,174 s 2,697,683 $ 2,260,572 $ 8,350,644 s 6,215,746 

Cap ital assets, net 46,238.066 46,810.639 21,323,663 21.247.649 67,561,729 68,058,288 

Total assets 51.891.027 50.765.813 24.021 ,346 23.508 ,221 75,912,373 74,274,034 

Deferred Outflows of 

Resources 2.778.341 213.603 390.872 3,169,213 213,603 

Liabiliti es : 

Current and other liabilit ies 1,944,041 1,944,086 1,7 10,506 1,306,469 3,654,547 3,250,555 

Long-term liabilities 29,417,176 15,171.548 7.233 ,287 5,469,09 1 36,650,463 20,740.639 

Total liabilities 31,36 1.217 17,215.634 8.943,793 6,775.560 40,305.010 23.991,194 

Deferred Inflows of 

Resources 1.127,230 171,043 1,298.273 

Net position: 
Invested in cap ital assets, 

net of related debt 31 ,353 ,665 31,382,569 15,951 , 146 15,422,319 47,304,8 11 46,804,888 

Restricted 1,540,872 1,473,011 1,540,872 1,473,011 

Unrestricted (10.713.616) 908.202 (653,765) 1.310.342 (11,367,381) 2,218,544 

Total net position $22.180.921 S 33,763.782 S 15.297,381 S 16.732,66 1 S 37,478,302 S 50.496,443 

Analysis of Government Wide Statement of Net Position: 

The City's assets exceeded liabi li ties by $37,478,302 for 201 5 and by $50,496,443 for 2014. By far, the largest 
portion of the City 's net assets reflects its investment in capital assets, less any related debt used to acquire or 
construct those assets. In 2015 that amount increased by $499,923 from $46,804,888 in 2014 to $47,304,811 in 
2015, while the Capital assets, net of depreciation also decreased from $68,058,288 in 2014 to $67,561,729 in 
2015. There remains $2,165,058 of construction in progress on the fixed asset books at the end of 2015. The 
restricted net assets of $1 ,540,872 are comprised of$23,563 for capital improvements, $253,047 for public safety, 
$57,778 for culture, $469,293 for economic development, and $737,191 for future debt service. 
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CITY OF OCEAN SPRINGS, MISSISSIPPI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYS IS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

The table below presents the City·s conde nsed statement of ac ti v ities as of September 30, 20 l 5 and 2014: 

Government \\ide Statement of Acti"ities 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 

Revenues 

Program revenues 
Charges fo r services s l,702,350 s l ,737,794 S 6,383,979 S 6,l l l ,417 S 8,086,329 s 7,849,211 

Operating grants 634,624 477,929 634,624 477,929 

Cap ital grants 983.403 400,069 248.928 75.319 1,232.33 l 475,388 

Total program 3,320.377 2.615,792 6.632.907 6.186.736 9,953.284 8.802.528 

General revenues 

Property taxes 3,754,437 3,875,168 3,754,437 3,875, l 68 

Franchise taxes 884,084 869,502 884,084 869,502 

Sales, restaurant, and 

hotel taxes 6, l 79,410 5,413 ,560 6,179,410 5,413,560 

Intergovernmental 1,414.28 1 1.373,897 1,414,281 l ,373,897 

BP settlement 615,089 615,089 

In terest earnings 4,729 4,475 4,729 4,475 

Other 186.244 202,7 18 (2.066) 186.244 200.652 

Total general l 3.038.274 11,739,320 (2,066) 13.038,274 11 ,737,254 

Total revenues 16,358.651 14.355.112 6,632.907 6.184.670 22.991.558 20,539,782 

Expenses 

General government l ,985,235 2,042,967 1,985,235 2,042,967 

Public safety 7,337,130 6,436,312 7,337,130 6,436,312 

Public works 2,401,806 2,984,549 2,401,806 2,984,549 

Health & welfare 369,378 226,549 369,378 226,549 

Economic development 864,805 471,703 864,805 471,703 

Culture and recreation 2,454,485 2,325,676 2,454,485 2,325,676 

Interest 697,389 695,554 697,389 695,554 

Water l ,633,638 1,561 ,283 1,633,638 1,561,283 

Sewer 2,816,964 2,744,509 2,816,964 2,744,509 

Garbage 1.289, 115 l,120,016 1,289, 115 l,120.016 

Total expenses 16.110.228 15,183,3 10 5,739.717 5.425.808 21.849.945 20,609,118 

Operating income (loss) 248,423 (828,198) 893,190 758 ,862 1,141 ,613 (69,336) 

Forgiveness of debt 3,007,123 3,007,123 

Unallowable FEM A costs 

Operating Transfers 500,000 600.000 (500.000) (600.000) 

Change in net position 748,423 2,778,925 393. 190 158,862 I , 141.613 2,937,787 

Beginning net position 33,763,782 31, 172, 186 16,732,661 16,82 1,325 50,496,443 47,993,511 

Prior period adjustments (12.331,284) (187,329) ( l ,828,4 70) (247,526) {14, 159.754) (434,855) 

Restated beginning net 21,432,498 30.984,857 14,904,191 16.573,799 36,336.689 47 ,558,656 

Ending net position S22. l 80.92 I 533,763,782 Sl5.297.381 $16,732.661 537,478,302 550,496.443 
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CITY OF OCEAN SPRINGS, MISSISSIPPI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

Analysis of Government Wide Statement of Activities: 

Revenues 
Total revenues for 2015 increased by $2.5 million from $20,539,782 in 2014 to $22,991 ,558 in 2015. With the 
near completion of hurricane recovery, federal grants are returning to pre-hurricane levels. The following graphs 
reflect the revenues and expenses of the City and the percentage of total for each type. 
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Property Tax - Property tax accounts for $3 .8 million or 17% of the City's total revenues and is usually 
considered one of the most stable revenue sources for the City. The City' s property tax revenue decreased by 
$120,731 as compared to the previous year. The entire Gulf South Region is experiencing significant insurance 
cost increases, increased cost of construction due to new elevation requirements, and overall insurability issues. 

Sales, Restaurant, and Hotel Tax - The most significant source of revenue for the City is sales taxes accounting 
.for $4.9 million or 22% of the City's total revenues. Sales tax increased as compared to the prior year by 
$643,331 , while Food & Beverage tax increased by $122,519 from 2014. 

Expenses 
Total program expenses increased by $1 ,240,827 from $20,609,118 in 2014 to $21 ,849,945 in 2015 . The 
Chart below represents the cost of each of the City's major governmental activities functional areas for 2015: 

Total Cost Net Cost 
of Service of Service 

Governmental Activities: 
General Government $ 1,985,235 $ 1,928,804 
Public Safety 7,337,130 6,137,306 
Public Works 2,401 ,806 1,384,002 
Health and Welfare 369,378 369,378 
Economic Development 864,805 583 ,084 
Culture and Recreation 2,454,485 1,689,888 
Interest on long term debt 697,389 697,389 

Total Governmental activities $ 16,110,228 $ 12,789,851 
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CITY OF OCEAN SPRINGS, MISSISSIPPI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

Governmental Funds Analysis 

As of the close of the fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of 
$4,742,45 1, an increase of $1.8 million from the previous fiscal year. Of that balance $23,563 is restricted for 
capital improvements, $469,293 for economic development, $253,047 for public safety, $57,778 for library 
support, and $918,884 for future debt service payments, with the remainder unrestricted in the general fund. 

• General Fund 
1. Fund balance totaled $3,019,886, an increase of$1.5 million from the previous year. 
2. Revenues increased $1.3 million, while expenditures increased by only $7,478. 
3. Received $500,000 transfer from Water & Sewer funds. 
4. Received $250,000 loan proceeds for Mary C. O'Keefe building roof repair. 

• General Obligation Fund (Debt Service) 
1. Paid out $498,484 in debt service, and received $301,819 in property tax revenues. 
2. Fund Balance totaled $181,384, a decrease of$196,665 from the previous year. 

• Food and Beverage Tax Fund 
1. Received $1,204,356 in tax revenues. 
2. Paid out $998,316 in costs, including $896,293 of debt service. 
3. Fund balance totaled $1,200,335, an increase of$258,021 from the previous year. 

Enterprise Funds Analysis 

Total operating income decreased $52,5 19 from previous year, and the net change in position was $393,190 after 
transferring $500,000 to the General fund, resulting in unrestricted net position of $(653, 765) at the end of2015. 

2015 2014 

Operating Revenues $ 6,383,979 $ 6,111,417 

Operating Expenses 5,608,325 5,283,244 
Operating Income 775,654 828,173 

Non-Operating Items: 
Interest Expense (131,392) (142,564) 
Grant Revenue 248,928 75 ,3 19 
Transfers Out (500,000) (600,000) 
Other (2,066) 

(382,464) (669,311) 
Change in Net Position $ 393,190 $ 158,862 

Budget Variances in the General and Food and Beverage Tax Funds 

Amendments to the General Fund original budget increased total appropriations and revenues by $1. 7 million 
each. Refer to the budgetary comparison schedule for the General Fund and the Food and Beverage Tax Fund 
on page 51-53 in the RSI section of the annual report. 

Capital Asset and Long-Term Debt Activity 

Capital Asset Activity 

At September 30, 2015, the City reported $46,238,066 in net capital assets for governmental activities and 
$21,323,655 for business-type activities for a total of$67 ,56 1,72 1 net of depreciation, compared to $68,058,288 
for 2014. Construction in progress increased from $1,295,709 in 2014 to $2,165,058 in 2015. 
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CITY OF OCEAN SPRI~GS, MISSISSIPPI 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

Governmental 
Activities 

Capital Assets 
(net of depreci ation) 

Business-type 
Activities 

2015 20 14 2015 2014 
Total 

2015 2014 

Land and artwork s 9,365,447 s 9,365,447 $ 29,413 s 29,413 s 9,394,860 s 9,394,860 
Buildings & improvements 10,956,960 11 , 163 ,936 3,191 3,191 10,960, 151 11 ,167, 127 
Machinery & equipment 309,403 387,691 282,768 326 ,015 592,171 713,706 
Infrastructure & systems 9, 144,403 9,316,667 20,372,403 20,762,693 29,516,806 30,079,360 
Other improvements 13 ,745 ,959 14, IOl,359 13 ,745 ,959 14,101,359 
Vehicles 1,085,179 I , 179,830 101,537 126,337 1, 186,716 1,306,167 
Construction in progress 1,630,7 15 1,295,709 534,343 2, 165,058 1,295,709 

Total S 46.238.066 S 46.810,639 S 21,323.655 $ 21 ,247.649 $67,561.721 S 68.058.288 

Additional information on the City 's capital assets can be found in ote Fon pages 37-38 of this report. 

Long-Term Debt Activitv 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had $20,256,918 in outstanding debt. During the year the City 
issued $250,000 of general obligation notes for the Mary C. O'Keefe building roofrepair. Additional information 
on the City's long-term debt can be found in Note H: Long-Term Debt on pages 40-42 and the Schedule ofLong­
Term Debt on page 61 of the supplemental information section of this report. 

General Obli gation, Revenue Bonds and Other Loans 

Special obligation bonds 

General obligation bonds 

Notes payable 

Capital leases payable 

Total 

Governmental 

Activities 

2015 2014 

$ 9,015,000 S 9,325,000 

3,815,000 3,985,000 

77 1,904 689,977 

1,282,497 1,428,093 
$14,884,401 $15,428.070 

Contact the City's Financial Management 

s 

Business-type 

Activities 

2015 2014 

- $ 

5,372,517 5,825,330 

$ 5,372,517 $ 5.825.330 

Total 

2015 

S 9,015 ,000 $ 

3,815,000 

6,144,421 

2014 

9,325,000 

3,985,000 

6,515,307 

1,282,497 1,428,093 
520,256,918 $21 ,253,400 

Questions about this report or requests for additional financial information may be addressed to: 

Shelly Ferguson, City Clerk 
City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi 
1018 Porter A venue 
Ocean Springs, MS 39564 
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City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi 
Statement ofNet Position 

September 30, 2015 

Prima!}'. Government 
Governmental Busines s-type 

Activities Activities Total 
Asse ts 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,778,859 $ 1,508, 144 $ 4,287,003 

Restricted assets: 
Cash - customers deposits 485,431 485,431 

Investments - bond reserve 737,500 737,500 

Receivables: 
Taxes 1,013,043 1,013,043 

Customer accounts, net 692,692 692,692 

Grants 893,715 893,715 

Other 34,879 34,879 

Internal balances (11,416) 11 ,416 

Prepaid insurance 206,381 206,381 

Capital assets : 
Land , artwork and construction in progress 10,996, 162 29,413 11,025,575 
Other (net of accumulated depreciatio n) 35,241.904 21 ,294.250 56,536.154 

Total assets 51 ,89 1.027 24.021.346 75,9 12.373 

Defer red Outflm~ of Resources 

Deferred bond issuance charges 202,361 202,361 

Deferred pension amounts 2.575.980 390.872 2.966.852 

Total deferred outflows of resources 2,778.341 390.872 3,169.213 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 444,660 718,412 1,163,072 
Retainage payable 51,324 51,324 
Accrued payroll 374,341 59,317 433,658 
Accrued interest payable 181,693 181,693 
Deve~perdepos~spayabk 40,185 467,389 507,574 
Due within one year: 

Bond s and notes 851,838 465,388 1,317,226 
Due beyond one year: 

Bonds and notes 14,032,563 4,907,129 18,939,692 
Net pens ion liability 14,763,636 2,240,195 17,003,831 
Compensated absences 620,977 85.963 706.940 

Total liabilities 31,36 1.217 8,943.793 40.305.010 

Deferred lntlo\\S of Resources 

Deferred pension amounts 1,127,230 171,043 1.298.273 

Net position 
Net In vestment in capital assets 31 ,353,665 15,951,146 47,304,8 11 
Restricted for: 

Debt service 737,191 737, 191 
Specific grant programs 780,118 780, 11 8 
Capital improvements 23,563 23,563 

Unrestricted { I 0. 713,6 16) {653,765) { I 1.367.381) 

Total net position $ 22.180.921 $ 15.297.38 1 $ 37.478.302 

RECEIVED 

s 1 l 2016 
The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of the Financial Statements. 
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City of Ocean S1lrings, Mississ ippi 
Statement of Activities 

For the Fiscal Year Ended Se ptembe r 30, 20 15 

Prog,ram Re ve nues Net (E.~cnses ) Reve nues and Chan!l,es in Net Po s itio n 
Operating Ca pita l Primary Covern men t 

Charges rur Grants and Grant s and G:ivernmenta l 11us incss-Type 
Fun ct ions/l'ro~rams ___ f~pen ses Services Co ntribution s Co ntributions Activities Activities To tal 

Gm'crnmcntal Act i,itics: 
C,enera l Covernment $ 1,985,235 $ 56,43 1 $ $ $ ( I, 928,804) $ $ ( I, 928,804) 
Public Sa le ty 7,337, 130 889,96 1 309,863 (6,137,306) (6, 137,306) 
Public Works 2,40 1,806 227,041 790,763 ( 1,384,002) ( 1,384,002) 
I kalth and Welfare 369.378 (369,378) (369.378) 
Eco no mic Development 864.805 28 1,72 1 (583,08-1) (583,084) 
Cu lture and Recreation 2,45-1,485 -1 74,237 97,720 192,6-10 (1 ,689,888) (1 ,689,888) 
Interest and Other, Long-Te nn Debt 697,389 (697,389) (697,389) 

Total C,overnme nta l Activities 16, 110,228 1,702,350 634,62-1 983,403 ( 12,789,85 1) __ ( 12,789,851) 

nusincss-Typc Al'tivi tics: 
Water 1,633,638 2,256,803 623, 165 623, 165 
Sewer 2.8 16,96-1 2,926,054 248,928 358,018 358,018 
(',arbagc 1.289. 11 5 1.20 I, 122 (87,993) (87,993) 

Total Business-Ty pe Act ivities 5,739.7 17 6.383,979 248,928 893, 190 893, 190 

Tota l Primary C'overn me nt $ 2 1,849,945 $ 8,086,329 $ 634,624 $ 1,232,33 1 ( 12,789,85 1) 893, 190 ( 11 ,896,66 1) 
= 
Ge neral revenues : 

Prope11y taxes 3,754,437 3,754,437 
Sales , resta urant. an d ho te l taXt!s 6, 179,410 6, 179,410 
Franch ise and utility ta~s 88-1,084 88-1,08-1 
In tergovern men ta! 1,4 14,28 1 1,41 -1 ,28 1 
BP sett lement 6 15,089 6 15,089 
Gain o n disposal or as sets 858 858 
Interest ea rnin gs -1 ,729 -1 ,729 
Miscellaneous 185,386 185,386 
Operating tran sfe rs 500,000 (500,000) 

Tota l genera l revenues and transfers 13,538,274 (500,000) 13,038.274 

Cha nge in m:t position 748,423 393, 190 I, 141.61 3 

Net Positio n - beginning of pe riod 33,763,782 16,732,66 1 50,496A43 

Prior period adjus tnie nt ( 12,33 1,284) ( 1.828,470) (14, 159.754) 

Net Position - beginnin g restated 2 1,432,498 14,904, 19 1 36,336,689 

Net Position -end ofpe riod $ 22, 180,921 $ 15.297,38 1 $ 37,478.302 

The Acco111pw1ying No tes are an Integral Part of the Financial S tatements. 
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As s ets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted assets: 

lnvestments - bond reserve 
Receivables: 

Taxes 
Grants 
Other 

Due from other funds 
Prepaids 

Total assets 

Li abilities and Fund Balance 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Retainage payable 
Accrued payroll 
Developer deposits 
Due to other funds 

Total liabilities 

Fund Balances: 
ons pen dab le for prep aids 

Restricted for: 
Economic development 
Library s up port 
Public safety 
Debt service 
Capital improvements 

Unassigned 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances 

Ci ty of Ocean Springs, i'vlissi ss ippi 
Balance Sheet 

Gowrnmental Funds 
September 30, 2015 

Food and 
Beverage General 

General Tax Obligation 

$ 2,223,213 $ 289,843 $ 172,965 

737,500 

810,858 185,679 8,419 
416,561 

34,879 
210,653 
206.381 

3.902,545 1.213,022 181.384 

425,822 687 
28,500 12,000 

374,341 
40,185 
13,81 1 

882,659 12.687 

206,381 

462,835 

737,500 181,384 

2.8 13.505 

3.019.886 1.200.335 181.384 

$ 3.902.545 $ l.213.022 $ 181.384 

Other 
Non-Majo r 

Governmental 

$ 92,838 

8,087 
477,154 

2,395 

580,474 

18, 151 
10,824 

210.653 

239.628 

6,458 
57,778 

253,047 

23,563 

340.846 

$ 580.474 

The Accompanying Notes are an In1egral Part oft he Financial Swtements. 
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Total 
Governmental 

$ 2,778,859 

737,500 

1,013,043 
893,715 
34,879 

213,048 
206,381 

5,877.425 

444,660 
51 ,324 

374,341 
40,185 

224,464 

1,134.974 

206,381 

469,293 
57,778 

253,047 
918,884 

23,563 
2,813,505 

4.742.45 l 

$ 5.877,425 



City of Ocean Springs, i'Vlis s issi ppi 
Reconciliation of the Balance S heet ofGowrnmental Funds 

to the Statement of Net Assets 
as of September 30, 2015 

Total fund balances of governmental funds in th e balance sheet, page 18 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net 
assets are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmenta l activ ities are not financial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 

G:Jvernmental capital asse ts 61,435,832 
Less: accumulated depreciation (15,197,766) 

Some Liabilities , including net pension obligations, are not due and 
payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported 

in the governmental funds. 

Net pension liability 

Deferred o utflows and inflows of resources related to pensions are 
to future periods and, therefore, are not reported in the funds: 

Deferred o ut flows ofreso urces related to pensions 2,575,980 
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (1, 127,230) 

Long-Lenn liabilities, including bonds payab le are not due and 
payab le in the current period and, therefo re, are not reported 
in the funds . Also governmental funds report the effect of 
issuance costs when debt is first issued, whereas these amo unts 
are deferred and amortized in the statement of ac tivities. 

Deferred charges on bond discounts 202,361 
Accrued interest payable (181,693) 
0:Jvernmental bo nds and notes payable ( 14,884,40 I) 
Compensated absences payable (620,977) 

Net position of governmental act ivities, page 16 

Th e Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of the Financial Statements. 
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s 4,742,451 

46,238,066 

(14,763,636) 

1,448,750 

(15,484,7 10) 

s 22.180.9"1 



City of Ocean Springs, i\llississippi 
Statement of Re\enues , Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Gowrnmental Funds 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2015 

Food and Other 
Beverage General Nonmajor Total 

General Tax Obligation Governmental Governmental 
Rewnues 

Ad valorem taxes $ 3,281, 125 $ $ 301,8 19 $ 171,493 $ 3,754,437 
Franchise fees 884,084 884,08-4 
Licenses and permits 281,721 28 1,72 1 
In tergovernmental 6,257,555 1,204,356 131,779 7,593,690 
Charges fo r services 530,668 530,668 
Grants 1, 124,908 491,019 1,6 15,927 
Fines and forfietures 873,455 18,606 892,061 
Interest income 4,729 4,729 
Other 153,524 2,000 155.524 

Total revenues 13.391.769 1.206.356 301.819 812.897 15.712.841 

Expenditures 
Current: 

General government 1,83 1,556 1,831,556 
Pub lie safety 6,343,645 10,067 9,878 6,363,590 
Public works 2.080,16 1 9, 199 2,089,360 
Health and welfare 369,378 369,378 
Economic development 399,273 73,425 35,791 508,489 
Culture and recreation 1,499,64 1 18,53 1 177,773 1,695,945 

Capital Outlay: 
Public safety 32,980 32,980 
Public works 345,105 345,105 
Economic development 2 10, 11 4 210,114 
Culture and recreation 192.640 235,547 428,187 

Debt service: 
Principal retirement 391,938 338,072 63,659 793,669 
Interest and agent fees 504.355 160.4 12 6.282 671.049 
Total expenditures 13.271.513 998.31 6 498.484 571,109 15.339.422 

Excess (deficiency) of reven ues 
over expenditures 120,256 208,040 ( 196.665) 241,788 373,419 

Other financin g sources (uses) 
Ins urance proceeds 29,862 29,862 
Proceeds of loans 250,000 250,000 
Sale of capital assets 7,345 7,345 
BP Settlement 6 15,089 615,089 
Transfers in 508,942 49,98 1 5,333 564,256 
Transfers out (5.333) (58.923) (64.256) 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) 1,405.905 49,98 1 (53.590) 1,402.296 

Net change in fund balance 1,526,161 258,02 1 (196,665) 188,198 1,775,7 15 

Fund balance, beginning 1.493.725 942.314 378.049 152,648 2.966,736 

Fund balances, end of year $ 3.0 19.886 $ 1.200.335 $ 181,384 $ 340.846 $ 4,742,451 

Th e Accompanying Notes are an In tegral Part of the Financial Starements. 
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City of Ocean Springs , li ss iss ippi 
Reconciliation of the S tatemcnt of Revenues, fapeuditures 

and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 
to the Statement of Ac thities 

for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2015 

Amounts reported for governmenta l activities in the s tatement of activities are different because: 

Net change in fund balances of governmental funds, page 20 

Governmenta l funds report capita l ou tlays as expenditures. However, in the 
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their 
estimated useful Lives and reported as depreciation expense. 

Expenditures fo r capital assets 1,016,386 
Less: current year depreciation (1 ,301,420) 

When assets are sold or retired in th e fund statements th e entire amount is 
shown in the fund statements, however, only the difference in book value 
and income received is shown as income in the government wide statements. 

Loss on disposal of assets 

Repayment of borrowed principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds , 
but the repayment reduces long-term Liabilities in the statement of net assets 

Proceeds o floan (250,000) 
Principal debt repayments 793.669 

The statement of Activities reports an expense equal to the City's proportionate 
share of the net pension expense for the cost sharing pension plan, however, 
in governmental funds , the cost sharing expenses are measured by the current 
amount of contributions made to the plan 

Pension expense (1 ,477,762) 
Deferred outflow of current year pension contributions sub sequent to 
measurement date 213,107 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of 
current fmancial resources and are not reported as expenditures in 

governmental funds. 
Accrued interest expense ( 15,098) 
Amortization of bond discounts (11 ,242) 
Change in long-tenn compensated absences 11 ,554 

Change in net position of govemmental activities, page 17 

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of the Financial Statements. 
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$ 1,775,715 

(285,034) 

(6,486) 

543 ,669 

(1 ,264,655) 

(1 4,786) 

s 748.423 



City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi 
Statement of Net Position 

Proprietary Funds 
September 30, 2015 

Bus iness-T):'.Qe Activities-Ente!::QriSe Funds 
Major Funds 

Garbage Total 
Water Sewer Co Uection Non-Majo r Entell)rise 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds 

Assets 
Current assets: 
Cash $ 880,615 $ 460,109 $ 167,420 $ $ 1,508, 144 
Restricted cash 485,431 485,431 
Receivab les: 
Cus tomer accounts , net 266,443 3 12,014 11 4,235 692,692 

Due from other funds 8.598 2.818 11 ,4 16 

Total current assets 1.155,656 774.94 1 281,655 485.431 2.697,683 

Noncurren t assets: 
Capital assets: 
land and construction in progress 24,059 5,354 29,413 
Other (net ofaccu1m1lated depreciation) 9.233.432 12.060,818 2 1,294.250 

Total noncurrent assets 9,257,491 12.066. 172 21.323,663 

Total assets l0,4 13,147 12,841, 11 3 281.655 485.431 24.021 ,346 

Deferred Outflow of Resources 

Deferred pension airount 134.225 157.245 99,402 390.872 

Liabilities 
Cu rrent liabilities: 
Accounts payable 77,900 564,032 76,480 718,412 
Accrued payroU 25,345 19,362 14,6!0 59,317 
Customer deposits payab le from 

restricted assets 467,389 467,389 
Current portion ofbond and notes 329.301 136,087 465.388 

Total current liabilities 432.546 719,481 91.090 467.389 1.710.506 

No n-current liabilities: 
Compensated absences 27,190 34,791 23,982 85,963 
Net pension obligatio n 769,280 90 1,215 569,700 2,240, 195 
Notes payable, non-current 3.884.511 1.022.618 4.907.129 
Total non-current liabilities 4.680.981 1,958.624 593,682 7,233.287 

Total liabilities 5. 113.517 2.678. !05 684,772 467,389 8,943.793 

Deferred Inflow of Resources 
Deferred pension a1rount 58.736 68.810 43,498 171.044 

Net position 
Net investment in capital asse ts 5,043,679 10,907,467 15,95 1, 146 
Unrestricted 331 .430 (656,024) (347.213) 18.042 (653.765) 

Total net position $ 5.375.109 $ 10,251.443 $ (347.2 13) $ 18,042 $ 15.297.381 

The Accompanying Notes are an In tegral Part ofth e Financial Statements. 
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City of Ocean Springs , Mississippi 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Pos ition 

Proprietary Funds 
For the F isca l Year Ended September 30, 20 15 

Business-Tz:ee Activities-Ente~rise Funds 
Major Funds 

Garbage Total 
Water Sewer Co llection on-Major Enterprise 
Fund · · Fund Fund Fund Funds 

Operating Revenues 
01arges for services: 

Water, sewer, and garbage, net 
of penalties & installations $ 2.256,803 s 2.926.054 s 1,20 1, 122 s $ 6.383,979 

Operating expenses 
Personal services 50 1,927 587,521 377,38 l 1,466,829 
Supplies 180,941 161,341 15,255 357,537 
Contracted services 82,068 1,605,190 883,703 2,570,961 
Other services and charges 389, 168 227,509 12,776 629,453 
Depreciation 398.971 184.574 583.545 

Total operating expenses l .553,075 2.766, 135 l.289,115 5,608.325 

Operating income (loss) 703.728 159,9 19 (87,993) 775,654 

Non-operati ng revenues (expe nses): 
Grants 248.928 248,928 
Interest expense (80,563) (50,829) (131,392) 
Transfers out (250,000) (250,000) (500,000) 

Net non-operating revenues 

over (under) expenses (330,563) (51.901) (382,464) 

Change in net positio n 373.165 108.0 18 (87.993) 393.190 

Net position, beginning of year 5,629,838 10,879,006 205,775 18,042 16,732,661 

Prior Period Adjustment (627,894) (735.58 l) (464.995) ( l.828,470) 

Net pos ition, beginning restated 5,001.944 10,143,425 (259.220) 18.042 14,904.191 

Net position , end of year s 5.375,109 $ 10.251.443 s (347.213) $ 18,042 $ 15.297.381 

T11 e Accompa11yi11g Notes are a11 In tegral Part oftlze Financial Statements. 
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City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi 

Statement of Cash Flow 

Proprietary Funds 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2015 

Business -Tl:'.ee Activities -Ente!Erise Funds 
Majo r Funds 

Garbage Total 
Water Sewer Co Uection o n-Major Enterpris e 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds 

Cash llo"'s from operating acthities 
Receipts from customers s 2,222,937 $ 2,920,581 s 1,176,572 s 2,213 s 6,322,303 
Pay ments to s uppliers (629,608) (1,640,31 6) (908,449) (3,178,373) 
Payments for services of employees (428.291) (5 18.978) (328,603) (1,275,872) 
Net cas h provided by (used in ) 

operating activities 1.1 65.038 761,287 (60.480) 2.213 1.868.058 

Cash flo"s from non-capital 
financing acthities 
Receipt of grants 248,928 248,928 
Transfers (to) from other fund s (250.000) (250,000) (500.000) 
Net cash provided by (used in ) 

non-capital financin g activit ies (250.000) ( 1.072) (251,072) 

Cash flo,\s from capital and related 
financing acthities 
Acquisition of cap ital assets (85,866) (573,693) (659,559) 

Retirement of debt (32 1,127) ( 131,686) (452,8 13) 
Interes t paid on debt (80.563) (50.829) (131J92) 

et cas h pro vided by (used in ) cap ital 
and related financing activities (487.556) (756.208) ( 1.243,764) 

Cash flo,\S from imesting acthities 
Temporary loan repayments 50.589 (50.589) 

et cas h pro vided by (used in ) 
investing activities 50.589 (50,589) 

Net increase (decrease) in cas h 
and cas h equivalents 478,071 4,007 ( 111 ,069) 2,213 373,222 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning 402.544 456.102 278,489 483.2 18 l.6?0.353 

Cash and cash equivalents , ending s 880.6 15 s 460.109 s 167.420 s 485.43 1 s 1.993,575 

Classified as: 
Current asse ts s 880,6 15 s 460,109 s 167,420 s s 1,508, 144 
Restricted assets 485.43 1 485.43 1 

Totals s 880.615 s 460, 109 s 167.420 s 485.431 s 1.993.575 

Current Restricted 
Assets Assets Total 

Cash and cash equivalents - October I s l ,182,135 s 438,21 8 s 1,620,353 
Net increase (decrease) 326,009 47,213 373.222 

Cas h and cas h equivalents - September 30 s 1.508. 144 s 485.43 1 s 1.993.575 

(Continued) 

RECEIVED 
SfP J 2 2016 

24 



City of Ocean Springs , Mississippi 
Statement of Cas h Flow 

Proprietary Funds 
For the Fisca l Yea r Ended September 30, 20 15 

(Continued) 

Reconciliation ofoperating income (loss) 
to net cash provided by (used in) 
operating activities: 

Operating income 

Adjustments to reconcile operating 
income to net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities: 

Depreciation 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable 
Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll and comp absence 
Accrued pension expense 
Customer deposits 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
operating activities 

s 

s 

Business-Type Activities-Enterprise Funds 
Majo r Fund 

Water 
Fund 

703,728 S 

398,971 

(33,866) 
22,569 

7,739 
65,897 

l.l65,038 s 

Sewer 
Fu nd 

159,919 $ 

184,574 

(5,473) 
353,724 

(8,656) 
77,199 

761.287 s 

Garbage 
Collection 

Fund 
Non-Major 

Fund 

(87,993) $ 

(24,550) 
3,285 

(23) 
48,801 

2.213 

(60.480) $ 2.213 

Th e Accompany ing Noces are an fncegral Part of the Financial Sta cements. 
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$ 

s 

Total 
Enterprise 

Funds 

775,654 

583,545 

(63,889) 
379,578 

(940) 
191 ,897 

2.213 

1,868.058 



Assets 

Cash 

Total assets 

Lia bi Ii ties 

Accounts payable 

Total liabilities 

City of Ocean Springs, iWississippi 
Statement of Assets and Lia bi Ii ties 

Agency Funds 
September 30, 2015 

Tax 
Sale& Payroll 

Redemetion Clearing 

$ 5.727 $ 242.510 

5,727 242,510 

5,727 242,510 

Flexible 
Medical 

Seen ding Total 

$ 12,1 57 $ 260,394 

12,1 57 260.394 

12,157 260,394 

$ 5.727 $ 242,510 $ 12,157 $ 260.394 
===== 

The Accompany ing Notes are an Integral Part of the Financial Statements. 
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City of Ocean Springs, Mississ ippi 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015 

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
The financial statements of the City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi (the City) have been prepared in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) applicable 
to governmental units . The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies of 
the City: 

(A) Reporting Entity 
The City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi was incorporated on September I 0, 1892 under the laws of 
the State of Mississippi. The City operates under a Mayor-Aldennan form of government and 
provides the following services: public safety, (police, fire, and civil defense) , public works 
(highways, streets, and sanitation), health and social services, culture-recreation, community 
development, planning and zoning, and general administrative services. 

The City ' s reporting entity applies all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
pronouncements. Proprietary funds apply Financial Accounting Standards Board (F ASB) 
pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before ovember 
30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which 
case, GASB prevails. As required by GAAP, these financial statements present the City of Ocean 
Springs (the primary government) and its components. 

(B) Component Unit Disclosure 
The criteria for including component units consists of identification of legally separate 
organizations for which the elected officials of the City are financially accountable. This criteria 
also includes identification of organizations for which the nature and significance of their 
relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's 
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Blended component units, although legally 
separate entities, are in substance, part of the government ' s operations, therefore data from these 
units is combined with data of the primary government. Discretely presented component units are 
reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that they 
are legally separate from the government. The City has no component units. 

(C) Related Organizations 
The Ocean Springs Municipal Separate School District has been excluded from the reporting entity, 
because it is an "other stand-alone government". The school district is a related organization of, 
but not a component unit of the City of Ocean Springs. Although the governing authorities of the 
City select a majority of the school district's board, they do not have ongoing financial 
accountability for the school district. 

(D) Joint Ventures and Jointly Governed Organizations 
Additionally, during its evaluation of potential component units, management identified one joint 
venture (Mississippi Gulf Coast Regional Wastewater Authority) , and one jointly governed 
organization (the Jackson-George Regional Library System). 

A joint venture is a legal entity or other organization that results from a contractual arrangement 
that is owned, operated, or governed by two or more participants as a separate and specific activity 
subject to joint control , in which the participants retain (a) an ongoing financial interest or (b) an 
ongoing financial responsibility. Generally, the purpose of a joint venture is to pool resources and 
share the costs, risks, and rewards of providing goods or services to the venture participants directly, 
or for the benefit of the general public or specific service recipients. 
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City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015 

A jointly governed organization is similar in nature to a joint venture in that they provide goods and 
services to the citizenry of two or more governments. However, they do not meet the definition of 
a joint venture because there is no ongoing significant financial interest or responsibility by the 
participating governments. 

(E) Basic Financial Statements- GASB Statement 34 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
The basic financial statements include both government-wide (based on the City as a whole) and 
fund financial statements. While the previous financial reporting model emphasized fund types (the 
total of all funds of a particular type), the new financial reporting model focuses on either the City 
as a whole, or on major individual funds (within the fund financial statements). Both the 
government-wide and fund financial statements categ·orize primary activities as either governmental 
or business-type. 

The government-wide financial statements, including the statement of net position and the statement 
of activities, report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the City. For the most part, 
the effect of interfund activity has been removed from the statements. Governmental activities, 
which are primarily supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately 
from business-type activities, which rely extensively on fees and charges for support. In the 
government-wide statement of net position, both the governmental and business-type activities 
columns are presented on a consolidated basis by column, and are reflected on a full accrual, 
economic resource basis, which incorporates long-tenn assets and receivables as well as long-term 
debt and obligations. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function 
or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable 
with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or 
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a 
given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not 
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues . 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds , proprietary funds , and fiduciary 
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major 
individual governmental funds and major enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the 
fund financial statements. 

(F) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial 
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as 
revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis 
of accounting, revenues are recognized when they become .susceptible to accrual , i.e., measurable 
and available to pay liabilities of the current period. 
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City of Ocean Springs, l\ilississippi 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015 

Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of 
the current period. The City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days 
of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability 
is incurred, if measurable, except for interest on long-term debt and the long-tenn portion of 
accumulated compensated absences, which are recognized when due. 

Year-end accruals of ad valorem taxes , sales taxes, and franchise fees are based upon actual 
collections of amounts remitted to the City within 60 days of year end. Anticipated refunds of taxes 
are recorded as liabilities and reductions of revenue when they are measurable. Other licenses and 
pennits, charges for services, fines and penalties, and miscellaneous revenues are recorded as 
revenues when they are received, as they are generally not measurable until actually received; 
however, charges for services which are measurable are recorded as revenue in the period earned. 

In applying the "susceptible to accrual" concept to intergovernmental revenues pursuant to GASB 
Statement No. 33 the provider should recognize liabilities and expenses and the recipient should 
recognize receivables and revenue when the applicable eligibility requirements including time 
requirements, are met. Resources transmitted before the eligibility requirements are met should, 
under most circumstances, be reported as advances by the provider and deferred revenue by the 
recipient. 

The financial transactions of the City are recorded in the individual funds. Each fund is accounted 
for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets , liabilities, 
reserves , fund equity, revenues and expenditures / expenses. The various funds are reported by 
generic classification within the financial statements. 

GASB Statement No . 34 sets forth minimum criteria for the determination of major funds. The 
non-major funds are combined in a column in the fund financial statements and detailed in the 
combining section. 

The proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a 
proprietary fund ·s principal operations. The principal operating revenues of the Water, Sewer and 
Garbage Collection funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for 
the enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation 
on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as 
nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management 
to make use of estimates that affect reported amounts in the basic financial statements. Actual 
results could differ from estimates. 

(G) Fund Types and Major Funds 

Governmental Funds 
Governmental funds are those funds through which the City finances most of its municipal services 
and are accounted for on the basis of a spending measurement focus. The focus on governmental 
funds is on the determination of changes in financial position rather than upon net income 
determination. The City's major governmental funds are as follows : 
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City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015 

General Fund is the City ' s primary operating fund. It is used to account for all financial 
resources of the general government except those required to be accounted for in a separate 
fund. This fund is always classified as a major fund by definition. 

General Obligation Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for and the 
payment of general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs. Revenues are received 
primarily from a separate property tax levy. This fund was selected to be classified as a major 
fund due to the type of expenditures. 

Food and Beverage Tax Special Revenue Fund is used to account for a special 2% sales tax 
on local food and beverage sales. This money will be used for economic development projects 
and will repay the debt on a recent $10.7 million bond issue. This fund was deemed to be a 
major fund by the requirements set forth in GASB 34 issued by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards. 

Other Non-Major Governmental Funds is a summarization of all non-major governmental 
funds including: 

Special Revenue Funds 
Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources 
that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 

Capital Projects Funds 
Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the 
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities. 

Proprietary Funds 
The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes in 
fund net position, financial position, and cash ·flows , which is similar to businesses. The following 
is a description of the Proprietary Funds of the City: 

Enterprise Funds 
The Water Fund and the Sewer Fund account for the activities of the City ' s water and sewer 
systems, the Garbage Collection Fund accounts for the activities of the City' s solid waste 
collection system. 

Non-Major Proprietary Fund accounts for the City's utility deposits . 

Non-Current Governmental Assets / Liabilities 
GASB Statement No. 34 eliminates the presentation of Account Groups, but provides for these 
records to be maintained and incorporates the information into the Governmental Activities column 
in the government-wide Statement of Net Position. 

(H) Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
The City considers cash on hand, demand deposits , certificates of deposit, and bank repurchase 
agreements as cash and cash equivalents. In addition, each fund 's equity in the City' s investment 
pool has been treated as a cash equivalent since cash may be deposited or withdrawn from the pool 
at any time without prior notice or penalty. 

RECEVEo 
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Accounts Receivable 

City of Ocean Springs, l.Vliss issippi 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015 

Accounts receivable are recorded in the Governmental and Business-type Funds. Where 
appropriate, an associated allowance for doubtful accounts has been established in the related fund. 

Inventories 
Governmental and Proprietary Fund inventories are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) 
or market. Inventories consist of expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded 
as expenditure at the time individual inventory items are consumed. 

Capital Assets 
Capital assets , including land, buildings, improvements other than buildings, infrastructure (i.e. , 
roads, bridges, street lighting, and other similar items), and equipment are reported in the applicable 
governmental and business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. 
The City's capitalization levels are as follows: purchased assets costing more than $5,000 are 
capitalized; building renovations are capitalized when their cost exceeds 25% of the building's 
previously capitalized cost and if the repair extends the building's estimated useful life; contributed 
capital assets are capitalized and recorded at the estimated market value at the time of the 
contribution. Salvage values range from 10% to 30% of cost. Assets acquired using capital lease 
obligations are treated in the same manner as purchased capital assets. Depreciation of capital assets 
is provided on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives: 

Compensated Absences 

Buildings 
Improvements 
Infrastructure 
Equipment 

40-50 years 
40-50 years 
20-60 years 

3-15 years 

The City accrues accumulated unpaid vacation and sick leave and associated employee-related costs 
when earned (or estimated to be earned) by the employee. Employees are paid for up to 30 days of 
unused vacation and all unused comp time upon retirement or tennination, while excess vacation and 
all accumulated sick leave remaining are counted as creditable service toward retirement. 

Post Employment Health Care Benefits 
The City has no known costs associated with post-employment benefits for retired employees. 

Interfund Transactions 
Disbursements made by one fund which are properly chargeable to another fund result in the creation 
of interfund receivables and payables. This type of transaction is normally settled by a cash payment 
between the funds . Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and 
business-type activities are repo1ted in the government financial statements as "internal balances". 
All other interfund transactions are accounted for as either an operating transfer or a capital transfer. 
A capital transfer results when a governmental fund permanently transfers funds to a proprietary fund 
as a capital infusion for the construction of fixed assets , for example. Transfers between 
governmental or proprietary funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the government wide 
columnar presentation. 
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Advances to Other Funds 

City of Ocean Springs, i\ilississippi 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015 

Various funds have made short-term advances to other funds. These advances, shown as "Due From 
Other Funds", are temporary in nature, bear no interest, and are considered "available spendable 
resources··. Long-term advances, if any, are those for which the timing of repayment is uncertain; 
thus, an allocable portion of fund balance would be reserved in governmental funds . 

Bond Discounts, Bond Premiums, and Issuance Costs 
In governmental funds, bond discounts, bond premiums, and issuance costs are treated as period 
costs in the year of issue and are shown as "Other Financing Sources (Uses)'·. 

In proprietary funds (and for governmental activities, in government-wide statements) bond 
discounts, and bond premiums, are deferred and amortized over the term of the bonds using the 
bonds outstanding method, which approximates the effective interest method. Bond issuance costs 
are expensed when incurred. 

Restrictions of Fund Equity 
The City does not have a fonnal minimum fund balance policy; however, the Mississippi State Code 
does not allow deficit fund balances. There were no individual funds reported with deficit fund 
balances. 

Note III (I) discusses m more detail the fund balance classification determinations for the 
governmental funds. 

II. Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability: 

A. Budgetary Data 

The procedures used by the City in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the combined 
financial statements are as follows: 

1. Prior to October I , the Mayor submits to the Board of Aldermen a proposed operating budget 
for the fiscal year beginning October I. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures 
and the means of financing them. 

2 . Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. 

3 . Not later than September 15, the budget is legally enacted through passage ofa resolution. 

4. The budgetary comparisons present budget figures at the legal level of control. The City legally 
adopts annual budgets for all funds. The Board of Aldermen formally adopts the annual budget 
for the general fund with revenues segregated by source (ad valorem tax, licenses and permits, 
intergovernmental, etc.). The general fund expenditure budget is set at the character level 
( current, capital outlay, debt service) for each department (function) with current expenditures 
further detailed at the object level (personal services, supplies, other services and charges, and 
contractual services). 
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City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015 

5. The budget for capital project funds is adopted at total fund type level with the revenue 
budget set at the source level and expenditures set at the total expenditure level. Proprietary 
fund budgets are adopted for the Water and Sewer Funds with revenues delineated at the 
source level (total intergovernmental revenue and total charges for services) and expenditure 
budgets delineated by character (current, capital outlay, debt service). 

6 . State statutes authorize the State Auditor to regulate the municipal budget process. 
Expenditures must be defined to the minimum level prescribed by the State Auditor. The 
State Auditor has set this level at the purpose level. Municipalities are prohibited from 
spending in excess of the lowest level adopted in the budget except for the capital outlay, 
election expense, and emergel!c_y warrants. 

7 . Formal budgetary integration at the "account level" is employed by management for 
expenditure control purposes. Management may transfer budget items between expenditure 
accounts within each character grouping of the expenditure accounts for each department. 

8 . The City ' s budgets are adopted in accordance with state statutes and regulations of the State 
Auditor and not on a basis consistent with Generally Accepted Governmental Accounting 
Principles . The budgets for revenues are on a cash basis - revenue is recognized if actually 
received within the year. Budgeted expenditures are on the cash basis with allowance for 
encumbrances for goods and services actually received prior to year-end and liquidated (paid) 
within thirty days after year-end. Accounting principles applied in preparation of the budget 
comparison statements differ from the generally accepted accounting principles used in 
preparation of the fund financial statements. These differences in the principles used results 
in timing differences in the recognition of revenues and expenditures. Below is a 
reconciliation of the General Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 
Fund Balance, Budget and Actual - Budget Basis to the General Fund column of the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds: 

Food and 

General Beverage Tax 

Fund Fund 

Excess ( deficiency) of revenues over 

expenditures, budgetary basis $ (219,770) $ 185,543 

Adjustments 

To convert receivables 344,395 (1 ,492) 

To convert liabilities (4,369) 23,989 

Totals, GAAP basis $ 120,256 $ 208,040 

B. Excess Expenditures over Appropriations 

There were no funds with excess expenditures over appropriations and available resources in 
individual funds for the current year. 
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III. Detail Notes - All Funds 

A. Property Tax Revenues 

City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015 

The City levies a tax on real and personal property based on the assessed value of property as 
compiled by the Jackson County Tax Assessor. The taxes on real and personal property attach as 
an enforceable lien on the property as of January 1 of each year. Taxes on real and personal 
property are levied by the Board of Aldermen at the first regular meeting in September. Through 
an inter-local agreement, all of the property taxes of the City of Ocean Springs are collected by the 
Jackson County Tax Collector and remitted as tax settlements (less an appropriate collection fee) 
to the City on a monthly basis. Taxes for the Ocean Springs Municipal Separate School District 
are also billed and collected by the county and remitted to the schools through the City. 

In accordance with the Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended, the Board of Aldermen may levy 
taxes in any amount for general revenue purposes and general improvements. However, taxes 
collected for any one year may not exceed one hundred and ten percent (110%) of the taxes 
collected for the prior assessment year. For purposes of the computation, taxes collected in the 
current year resulting from property added to the tax assessment roll are excluded from the 
computation. In addition, the Board of Aldermen may levy additional taxes for specific purposes, 
such as culture and recreation, as authorized by law. 

The tax levies approved by the Board to be collected during the fiscal years indicated below are as 
follows : 

City Funds 
General 
Library maintenance 
Debt service 

Total City administered funds 

School Funds 
District maintenance 
School debt 

Total School administered funds 

Total levy 

B. Deposits and Investments 

Deposits 

2015-2016 
Millage 

19.05 
2.77 
1.77 

22.83 

55.75 
13.90 
69.65 

22.48 

2014-2015 2013-2014 
Millage Millage 

19.05 19.05 
1.01 1.01 
1.77 1.77 

21.83 21.83 

55.00 55.00 
14.61 14.63 
69.61 69.61 

21.44 21.46 

The City deposits funds in financial institutions selected by the Board of Aldermen in accordance 
with state statutes. Furthermore, the City invests excess funds in various investment instruments 
that are allowed by statutes. Various restrictions on deposits and investments are imposed by 
statutes. Deposits and investments are summarized below. 
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City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015 

Deposits consist of cash amounts in demand accounts and certificates of deposit. The collateral for 
public entities ' deposits in financial institutions are now held in the name of the State Treasurer 
under a program established by the Mississippi State Legislature and is governed by Section 27-
105-5, Miss. Code Ann. ( 1972). Under this program, the entity 's funds are protected through a 
collateral pool administered by the State Treasurer. Financial institutions holding deposits of public 
funds must pledge securities as collateral against those deposits. In the event of failure of a financial 
institution, securities pledged by that institution would be liquidated by the State Treasurer to 
replace the public deposits not covered by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC). 
By using this multiple financial institution collateral pool , all of the City 's deposits at September 
30, 2014 fall into the credit risk category of "Insured or collaterali::.ed with securities held by the 
entity or by its agent in the entity 's name". 

The City awarded Hancock Bank the designated depository for calendar year 2014-2015, who then 
allocates resulting balances of cash to other City approved depositories as follows: 

Hancock Bank 
Peoples Bank 
BancorpSouth Bank 

Total 

Allocation 
60.00% 
10.00% 
30.00% 

100.00% 

Custodial Credit Risk. Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a depository 
failure, the City 's deposits may not be returned to it. The City does not have a formal policy for 
custodial credit risk. However, state law pennits the Mississippi State Treasurer's office to manage 
that risk on behalf of the City. Deposits above FDIC coverage are collateralized by the pledging 
financial institutions' trust department or agent in the name of the Mississippi State Treasurer on 
behalf of the City. By signed agreement the Mississippi State Treasurer's office is acting on behalf 
of the City. Deposits at September 30, 2015 (including restricted deposits) are as follows: 

Pooled deposits: 
Cash and cash equiva lents 

Non-pooled deposits: 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Total 

Reconciliation to Government-wide Statement 
of Net Position: 
Government activities: 

Unrestricted cash 
Business-type activities: 

Unrestricted cash 
Restricted (Utility deposits) 

Total 
Agency fund cash (not included in government­

wide statements) 

Total 
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Bank 
Balances 

$ 4,8 17,976 

210,670 

$ 5,028 ,646 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Carrying 
Value 

4,772,434 

260,394 

5,032,828 

2,778,859 

1,508,144 
485 ,431 

4,772 ,434 

260,394 

5,032,828 I 
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Investments 

City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015 

The debt service reserve of$737,500 is invested in the Hancock Horizon Government Mutual fund, 
which is uninsured and unregistered and is not backed by the full faith and credit of the federal 
government, however is exclusively made up of short-term U.S. Government Securities. 

C. Receivables 

The Statement of Net Position of the City of Ocean Springs includes the following receivables at 
September 30, 2015: 

Taxes receivable: 
Franchise taxes 
Sales, restaurant, and hotel taxes 
Ad valorem taxes 

Total taxes receivable 

Customer accounts receivable: 
Garbage fees 
Water and sewer utility charges (billed) 

Less allowance for doubtful accounts 
Customer accounts receivable earned but not billed 

Total customer accounts receivable, net 

Grants receivable: 
Federal, state, and local grants 

D. Prepaid Insurance 

Prepaid Insurance at September 30, 2015 consists of the following: 
Governmental Funds (Building & Liability) 

E. Interfund Transactions 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

238 ,910 
684,465 

89.668 
1,013.043 

248,763 
1,016,291 
(748,256) 
175.894 
692.692 

893,715 

206,38 l 

Almost all funds are pooled into one bank account, therefore limiting the need for interfund 
loans, except for grant funds that have been expended but not yet reimbursed by year end. 
Interfund loans are reported on the government wide statements as internal balances. The 
following is a recap ofinterfund loans as of September 30, 2015 : 

Receivable Fund PaJ'.able Fund Amount 

General Fund Other governmental funds $ 210,653 
Other governmental funds General Fund 2,395 
Water Fund General Fund 8,598 
Sewer Fund General Fund 2,818 

Total $ 224,464 

RECEIVED 
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City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015 

E. Interfund Transactions (Continued) 

Interfund transfers for the year ended September 30, 2015 are as follows: 

Transfers Out 

General Funds 
Other governmental funds 

Water Fund 
Sewer Fund 

Total 

Transfers In 

Other governmental funds 
Food and Beverage Tax Fund 
General Fund 
General Fund 
General Fund 

$ 

$ 

Amount 

5,333 
49,981 

8,942 
250,000 
250,000 

564,256 

Transfers are used to (a) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect 
them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them and to (b) use unrestricted revenues 
collected in the general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance 
with budgetary authorizations. 

F. Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2015 is as follows: 

Balance Deletions/ Balance 
Gowrnmental activities: 10/ 1/2014 Additions Adjustments 9/30/2015 
Cap ital assets , not being depreciated 

Land $ 3,648,304 $ $ $ 3,648,304 
Donated artwork 5,717,143 5,717, 143 
Construction in progress 1,295.709 616,059 (281.053) l.630,7 t 5 

Total cap ital assets , not being depreciated I 0.66 1, 156 616.059 (28 t ,053) 10.996.162 

Cap ital assets being depreciated: 
Building; and improvements 13,877,944 13,877,944 
Machinery and equipment 1,040,737 ( t 8,956) l ,021 ,781 
Other improvements 15, 189,675 22,242 l 5,2l l ,9t7 
l nfrastructure 15,387,6 19 345,105 15,732,724 
Vehicles 4,625.289 32.980 (62.965) 4.595.304 

Total cap ital assets, being depreciated 50,121,264 400,327 (81,921) 50,439.670 

Less: Accumulated depreciation 
Building; (2,7 14,008) (206,976) (2,920,984) 
Machinery and equipment (653 ,046) (78,098) 18,766 (7 t 2,378) 
Other improvements ( l ,088,3 16) (377,642) ( 1,465,958) 
Infrastructure (6 ,070,952) (5 t 7,369) (6,588,321) 
Vehicles (3,445.459) ( 12 1,335) 56,669 (3.510, 125) 

Total accumulated depreciation ( 13.97 1.781) ( l ,301,420) 75.435 (15.197,766) 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 36. 149.483 (901 ,093) (6,486) 35.241 ,904 

Governmental activities capital assets , net $ 46.810.639 $ (285 .034) $ (287.539) $ 46.238,066 
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City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015 

F. Capital Assets (Continued) 

Balance De letions / 
Busi ness - type activities : 10/1/2014 Additions Ad.justments 

Cap ital assets, not being depreciated 
land $ 29,413 $ $ 
Construction in progress 534,343 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 29,413 534.343 

Cap ital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings 35,390 
Machinery and equipment 724,943 14,570 
Other Improvements 39,244,395 123,114 
Vehicles 820,867 6,117 

Total cap ital assets, being depreciated 40,825.595 123,114 20,687 

less: Accumulated depreciation 
Buildings (32,199) 
Machinery and equipment (398,928) (57,817) 
Other lmprovements (18,481,702) (513,404) 
Vehicles (694,530) (12.324) (18,593) 

Total accumulated depreciation (19,607,359) (583,545) ( 18.593) 

Total cap ital assets being depreciated, net 21 .218,236 (460,431) 2.094 

Business activities capital assets, net $ 21,247,649 $ 73 .9 12 $ 2,094 

Primary Government 
Total capital assets, net $ 68,058.288 $ (2 11 ,122) $ (285.445) 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government 
as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
General government $ 23,956 
Public safety 238,167 
Public works 534,418 
Community development 110,007 
Culture and recreation 394 872 

Total 1,301,420 

Business-type activities: 
Water system 398,971 
Sewer system 184 574 

Total 583 545 

Total All Depreciation $ 1,884,265 

38 

Balance 
9/30/2015 

$ 29,413 
534.343 

563,756 

35,390 
739,513 

39,367,509 
826.984 

40 .969,396 

(32, 199) 
(456,745) 

(18,995, I 06) 
(725,447) 

(20.209,497) 

20,759,899 

$ 21.323 ,655 

$ 67.561.721 



City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015 

G. Capital Leases 

The City has entered into several capital leases to finance the purchase of equipment and vehicles. The 
purchases were financed at a fixed, simple interest rate. Title to the assets is held in the name of the City 
and the banks as lien holder. The City insures the assets and accounts for the leases as financing 
arrangements. The City will make the following future payments of principal and interest on all leases: 

Principal 

2016 $ 125,580 $ 

2017 125,247 
2018 133,017 
2019 141,275 
2020 150,053 

2021-2025 607,325 

$ 1,282,497 $ 

Assets Acquired thru Capital Lease: 

Fire Trucks 
Hwy 57 Sportsplex Lighting 

Total Cost 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

Net Total Capital Lease Assets 

Interest 

79,053 $ 

71 ,687 
63,918 
55,659 
46,882 

102,891 

420,090 $ 

Total 

204,633 
196,934 
196,935 
196,934 
196,935 
710,216 

1,702,587 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 842,829 
1,489,000 
2,331 ,829 
(483,346) 

$ 1,848,483 

Future minimum lease payments and the net present value of the lease payments are: 

Year Ended September 30: 

2016 

2017 
2018 

2019 

2020 
2021-2025 

Total minimum lease payments 

Less: amount representing interest 

Present va lue of minimum lease payments 
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Governmental 

Activities 

$ 204,633 

196,934 

196,935 

196,934 

196,935 
710,216 

1,702,587 

(420,090) 

$ 1,282,497 



H. Long-Term Debt 

City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015 

The following is a summary of bond and other long-tenn debt transactions of the City for the year 
ended September 30, 2015: 

Amounts 

Beginning Ending Due Within 

Governmental activities: Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year 

General Obli!?fltion Bonds 

and Notes $13,999,977 $ 250,000 $ 648,073 $13,601 ,904 $ 726,258 

Cap ital leases 1,428,093 145,596 1,282,497 125,580 

Compensated absences 632.531 32.215 43 ,769 620,977 

Total governmental activities $ 16,060,60 I $ 282.215 $ 837,438 $15,505.378 $ 851,838 

Business-type activities: 

Water & Sewer, pollution 

control notes & bonds $ 5,825,330 $ $ 452,8 13 $ 5,372,517 $ 465,388 

Compensated absences 96.480 930 11.447 85,963 

Total business-type activities $ 5.921,810 $ 930 $ 464,260 $ 5.458,480 $ 465,388 

Bonds, notes, and other long-term debt payable at September 30, 2015 are comprised of the following 
individual issues: 

Original Interest Amount 
Governmental Type Activities Issue Rates Outstanding 

General and Special Obligation Bonds and Notes: 
Mississippi Development Bank special obligation 

bonds, semi-annual payments through July 2034 $10,710,000 5.125% $ 9,015,000 
General Obligation Bonds series 2009, semi annual 

payments through December 2029 4,600,000 vanous 3,815,000 
Bancorp South general obligation note, annual 

payments of$50,000 through November 2018 250,000 2.11% 200,000 
Mississippi Development Bank promissory note, due 

monthly installments of $2,773 through May 2023 500,000 3.00% 227,492 
Hancock Bank general obligation note, annual 

payments of$43,087 through December 2015 200,000 2.53% 42,023 
Community Bank general obligation note, annual 

payments of$50,000 through February 2020 250,000 1.80% 250,000 
Hancock Bank general obligation note, annual 

payments of$53,642 through December 2015 250,000 2.39% 52,389 

Total General & Special Obligation Bonds and Notes 13,601,904 
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City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015 

H. Long-Term Debt (Continued) 
Original Interest Amount 

Issue Rates Outstanding 
Capital Leases: 

Hancock Bank, monthly payments of $5,521 
Maturing December 2015 $ 535,438 4.35% $ 7,645 

First Security Leasing, semi-annual payments 
of$78,913 maturing December 2024 1,489,000 6.50% 1,105,717 

Oshkosh Capital, annual payments of $39,109 
Maturing April 2020 306,954 5.04% 169 135 

Total Capital Leases 1,282,497 

Compensated absences 620,977 

Total Governmental Type Debt 15,505,378 
Less: Current Portion (851,838) 

Total Governmental Type Long-Term Debt $ 14,653,540 

Business Type Activities 

Water and Sewer Debt: 
State of MS Drinking Water Improvement Notes, 

monthly installments, maturing Nov 2029 $ 5,453,946 Various $ 3,702,788 
MS Development Capital Loan, monthly 

payments of $1,872, maturing Dec 2027 500,000 4.95% 243,543 
Capital Improvement Revolving Loan, monthly 

payments of $1,515, maturing Sept 2021 273,115 3.00% 99,746 
MS Development Capital Loan, monthly 

payments of$2,773, maturing March 2021 500,000 3.00% 167,736 
State Revolving Loan, monthly payments of 

$8,077 maturing January 2018 1,100,100 4.50% 214,307 
State Revolving Loan, monthly payments of 

$8,077 maturing January 2018 1,059,133 1.75% 944,398 

Total Water and Sewer Debt 5,372,517 

Compensated absences 85,963 

Total Business Type Debt 5,458,480 
Less: Current Portion (465,388) 

Total Business Type Long-Tenn Debt $ 4,993,092 
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City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015 

H. Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

The annual requirements to pay principal and interest on the bonds, notes and loans outstanding at 
September 30, 2015 are as follows: 

Year Gowrnmental T~ Aeth,ities Business T~~ Acthiti es 
Ending Princieal In terest Total PrincieaI Interest 

2016 726,258 566,050 1,292,308 

2017 647,662 544,431 1, 192,093 

2018 668,504 524,647 1,193, 151 

2019 689,371 503,426 1,192,797 

2020 665,264 480,602 1, 145,866 

2021-2025 3,424,845 2,015, 193 5,440,038 
2026-2030 4,180,000 1,22 1,138 5,401 ,138 
2031-2034 2.600,000 341,582 2.94 1,582 

$ 13.601 ,904 $ 6, 197,069 $ 19.798.973 $ 

The City's legal debt limit for general obligation debt is as follows: 

Assessed valuations 2015 (inside the City): 

Real property 

Personal property 

Public utility 
Autos, estimated 

Total assessed valuations 

Fifteen percent (15%) of total assessed valuation 

Less: outstanding general obligation debt at 9/30/ 15 

Remaining 

465,388 118,8 15 

478,459 105,742 
427,523 92,892 

404,295 82,981 
414,002 73,276 

1,87 1,780 231,148 
1, 171,146 56,955 

139,924 2,874 

5.372.517 $ 764.683 $ 

$ 138,328,422 

10,280,654 

10,259,417 
20.527,098 

$ 179,395,591 

$ 26,909,339 
(3,815.000} 

$ 23,094.339 

Total 
584,203 
584,20 1 

520,4 15 
487,276 

487,278 

2, 102,928 
1,228,10 1 

142,798 

6, 137,200 

The Board of Aldennen annually adopts a resolution providing for the amount of property tax millage 
necessary to be levied and collected by the City in the next fiscal year for the payment during such year of 
principal and interest on all outstanding general obligation bonds of the City. The City's debt service 
millage rate for the year ended September 30, 2015, again remained at 1.77 mills or $1.77 per $1,000 of 
assessed value. 

I. Fund Balance Disclosures 

In accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board 54, Fund Balance Reporting and 
Governmental Fund Type Definitions, the City classifies governmental fund balances as follows: 

Non-spendable - includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because it is not in 
spendable form or because of legal or contractual constraints. The City currently only has prepaid 
insurance reported as non-spendable fund balance. 
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City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015 

I. Fund Balance Disclosures ( continued) 

Restricted - includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes which are 
externally imposed by providers, such as creditors or amounts constrained due to constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation. 

Committed - includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes that are 
internally imposed by the government through formal action of the highest level of decision making 
authority and does not lapse at year end. The City has no committed fund balances at this time. 

Assigned - includes fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for specific purposes that 
are neither considered restricted or committed. Fund balance may be assigned by the Board or by 
an official or body to which the Board delegates authority. The City has no assigned fund balances 
reported at this time. 

Unassigned- includes positive fund balance within the General Fund which has not been classified 
within the above mentioned categories and negative fund balances in other governmental funds. 

The Board of Alderman establishes (and modifies or rescinds) fund balance commitments by passage 
of an ordinance or resolution. This is typically done through adoption and amendment of the budget. 
A fund balance commitment is further indicated in the budget document as a designation or 
commitment of the fund (such as special incentives). Assigned fund balance is established by the 
Board through adoption or amendment of the budget as intended for specific purpose (such as the 
purchase of fixed assets, construction, debt service, or for other purposes). 

The City uses restricted/committed amounts to be spent first when both restricted and unrestricted 
fund balance is available unless there are legal documents/contracts that prohibit doing this, such as 
a grant agreement requiring dollar for dollar spending. Additionally, the Government would first use 
committed, then assigned, and lastly unassigned amounts of unrestricted fund balance when 
expenditures are made. 

J. Retirement Plans 

PERS' Defined Benefit Pension Plan 
All full-time City employees hired after June 30, 1987, participate in the Public Employees' 
Retirement System of Mississippi (PERS). Other City employees hired prior to July 1, 1987 may 
elect to participate in the retirement system under an option offered by PERS. 

Plan Description: The City of Ocean Springs contributes to the Public Employees' Retirement System 
of Mississippi (PERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. PERS 
provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to 
plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by State law and may be amended 
only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. PERS issues a publicly available financial report that 
includes financial statements and required supplementary infonnation. That information may be 
obtained by writing to Public Employee Retirement System, PERS Building, 429 Mississippi Street, 
Jackson, MS 39201 or by calling (601) 359-3589 or 1-800-444 PERS. 
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For the Year Ended September 30, 2015 

J. Retirement Plans (Continued) 

Benefits provided. Membership in PERS is a condition of employment granted upon hiring for 
qualifying employees and officials of the State of Mississippi, state universities, community and 
junior colleges, and teachers and employees of the public school districts. For those persons 
employed by political subdivisions and instrumentalities of the State of Mississippi, membership is 
contingent upon approval of the entity's participation in PERS by the PERS' Board of Trustees. If 
approved, membership for the entity's employees is a condition of employment and eligibility is 
granted to those who qualify upon hiring. Participating members who are vested and retire at or after 
age 60 or those who retire r_egardless of age with at least 30 years of creditable service (25 years of 
creditable service for employees who became members of PERS before July 1, 2011) are entitled, 
upon application, to an annual retirement allowance payable monthly for life in an amount equal to 
2.0 percent of their average compensation for each year of creditable service up to and including 30 
years (25 years for those who became members of PERS before July 1, 2011), plus 2.5 percent for 
each additional year of creditable service with an actuarial reduction in the benefit for each year of 
creditable service below 30 years or the number of years in age that the member is below 65, 
whichever is less. Average compensation is the average of the employee's earnings during the four 
highest compensated years of creditable service. Benefits vest upon completion of eight years of 
membership service (four years of membership service for those who became members of PERS 
before July 1, 2007). PERS also provides certain death and disability benefits. A Cost-of-Living 
Adjustment (COLA) payment is made to eligible retirees and beneficiaries. The COLA is equal to 
3.0 percent of the annual retirement allowance for each full fiscal year ofretirement up to the year in 
which the retired member reaches age 60 (55 for those who became members of PERS before July 1, 
2011), with 3.0 percent compounded for each fiscal year thereafter. Plan provisions are established 
and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. 

Contributions: PERS members are required to contribute 9.00% of their annual covered salary, and 
the City is required to contribute at an actuarially detennined rate. The employer's rate for the fiscal 
year ended September 30, 2015 was 15.75% of annual covered payroll. The contribution 
requirements of PERS members and employers are established and may be amended only by the State 
of Mississippi Legislature. The City's contributions to PERS for the fiscal years ending September 
30, 2015, 2014, and 2013 were $1,078,020, $1,115,367, and $1,044,765, respectively, which equaled 
the required contributions for each year. 

Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 

At September 30, 2015, the City reported a liability of $17,003,831 for its proportionate share of the 
net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was detennined by an actuarial valuation as of that 
date. The City' s portion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City's long-tenn 
share of contribution to the pension plan relative to projected contributions of all participating entities, 
actuarially determined. At September 30, 2015, the City· s proportionate share was .11 % percent. 

For the year ended September 30, 2015, the City recognized pension expense of $1,701,994. At 
September 30, 2015 the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
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For the Year Ended September 30, 2015 

Retirement Plans (Continued) 
Deferred Deferred 

Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

Differences between expected and actual 
Experience $ 261,680 $ 

Net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on pension plan investments 994,906 1,298,273 

Changes in proportion and differences 
between City contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions 1,464,822 

City contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date 245,444 

Total $ 2,966,852 $ 1,298,273 

$245,444 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction to the net 
pension liability in the year ended September 30, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in 
pension expense as follows: 

Year ended 
September 30: 

2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 

$ 558,902 
558,902 
381,174 
(75,842) 

Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability in the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation was 
detennined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement: 

Inflation 

Salary increases 

Investment rate of return 

3.0 percent 

3.75 - 19.00 percent, including inflation 

7. 7 5 percent, net of pension plan investment 
expense, including inflation 

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table Projected with Scale BB to 
2016, set forward one year for males. The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2015 val:uation 
were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2010 to June 30, 
2014. The experience report is dated May 4, 2015. 

The long-tenn expected rate of return on pension plan investments was detennined using a log­
normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected nominal returns, net of pension plan investment expense and the assumed rate of 
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 

These ranges ae combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the 
expected future real rates ofreturn by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected 
inflation. The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each 
major asset class are summarized in the following table: 
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J. Retirement Plans (Continued) 

Target Long-Tenn Expected Real 
Asset Class 
U.S. Broad 
International Equity 
Emerging Markets Equity 
Fixed Income 
Real Assets 
Private Equity 
Cash 

Total 

Allocation 
34% 
19 
8 

20 
10 
8 

100% 

Rate of Return 
5.20% 
5.00 
5.45 
0.25 
4.00 
6.15 

(0.50) 

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.75 percent. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member 
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that Employer contributions will be 
made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the 
member rate. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan' s fiduciary net position was projected 
to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan. Therefore, the long­
term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected 
benefit payments to detennine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the City 's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount 
ra te. The following presents the City'~ proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated 
using the discount rate of 8 percent, as well as what the City' s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is !°-percentage-point lower (7 
percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (9 percent) than the current rate: 

Current 
Discount 1% 

1 % Decrease Rate Increase 
(6.75%) (7.75%) (8 .75%) 

City' s propo11ionate 
share of the net pension 
liability $ 22,412,607 $ 17,003 ,831 $ 12,515,558 

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan ' s fiduciary net 
position is available in the separately issued PERS financial report. 

Deferred Compensation Plan 
The City also offers employees voluntary participation in a deferred compensation plan created in 
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, Group Flexible Fund Retirement 
Contracts, administered by Nationwide Retirement Solutions, Inc., permits employees to defer a 
portion of their salary until future years . All plan assets are held in trust by Nationwide for the 
exclusive benefit of the participants and thei r beneficiaries and not subject to the claims of the City ' s 
general creditors. 
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K. Community Development Block Grant Program 

Status of Grants 
The City of Ocean Springs was awarded a grant by the Department of Housing and Urban 
Development Community Block Grant Program for the purpose of providing sidewalks on front 
beach as detailed below: 

Round III Community Revitalization 
Front Beach Sidewalks 

L. Related Party Commitments 

Joint Venture 

$ 

Awarded 

2,247,388 $ 

Current 
Expended 

$ 

Cumulative 
Expended 

1,955,608 

The City of Ocean Springs is a member of the Jackson County Utility Authority (Authority) which 
was established by an act of the Mississippi Legislature and operates under MS Code 49-17-701 to 
provide for adequate wastewater treatment and solid waste disposal services to the citizens of Jackson 
County, Mississippi. · 

The governing board is comprised of one member from each of the cities and two members from 
each of the counties who are members of the Authority. Through a fifty -year contract, the City of 
Ocean Springs is obligated to pay monthly, its pro-rata share of all operating, administrative, and 
capital costs of the Authority. Additionally, the City is jointly and severally liable for all of the 
liabilities of the Authority. The Authority is classified as a joint venture between the City of Ocean 
Springs and the other members. The following is a synopsis of the Authority's financial statements 
as of and for the year ended September 30, 2015, a complete copy of which is on file at the 
administrative offices of the Authority. 

Jacks on County Utility Autho rity 
Statene nt of Ne t Pos ition 

Assets 
Current assets 
Restricted assets 
Noncurrent assets 

Total assets 
Deferred Outflows 
Liabilities 

Current liabilities 
Noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 
Deferred Inflows 
Net position 

Invested in capital assets, 
net of re lated debt 

Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 
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$ 

$ 

2,380,509 

3,023,861 
142,277,431 

. 147,681 ,801 
2,072,713 

9,801,739 
20,869,572 
30,671,3 11 

269,758 

123,734,390 

3,023,861 
(7,944,806) 

118,813,445 



City of Ocean Springs, l\ilississippi 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

For the Year Ended September 30, 20 15 

L. Related Party Commitments (Continued) 

Statement ofRevenues , Expenditures and 
Changes in Net Position 

Operating revenues 

Operating expenses 

Non-operating revenues, net 

Change in net position 

$ 12,223,572 

(17,857,177) 

5,316,732 

$ (316,873) 

The following financial information concerning transactions with the Authority has been included 
in the City of Ocean Springs's financial statements under the following captions: 

Sewer Enterprise Fund Group 
Statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund balance: 

Contractual Services (wastewater treatment) $==""'1""'.5="'42!Se>.6~9-8 

M. Jointly Governed Organizations 

Jackson George Regional Library System - On November 2, 1970, the City entered into an 
agreement with the Cities of Moss Point, Pascagoula, Gautier, and Lucedale, and the Board of 
Supervisors of Jackson and George Counties, to mutually cooperate in securing a more economical 
public library system through combined resources, interests, materials and facilities to be known 
as the Jackson George Regional Library System. There are no specific monetary terms in the 
agreement and the City of Ocean Springs has no equity interest in the organization. 

The City of Ocean Springs contributed $177,769 for the year ended September 30, 2015 through 
proceeds of a specific tax levy authorized by MS Code 39-3-13. The amount budgeted for the City 
of Ocean Springs for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016 is $179,670, which includes 
$135,000 of appropriations and $44,670 of building insurance and repairs. This agreement is 
cancelable upon 90 days written notice prior to the end of the fiscal year and therefore, the City of 
Ocean Springs does not have an ongoing financial responsibility. 

N. Other Commitments 

In connection with the Capital Projects, the City budgeted certain commitments for engineering 
services, construction and other capital project costs. The projects are to be funded, in part, with 
State and Federal grants. The remainder of the required funds will be generated by local sources. 
The following is a summary of the budgeted commitment for future capital projects: 

Contract Expended Remaining 

Amount to Date Contract 

Ocean Springs Harbor $ 736,320 $ 264,707 $ 471 ,613 
Government Street Signal 528,644 489,214 39,430 

Street Scape Phase III 480,744 140,326 340,418 

Hawk Pedestrian Gov't St. 1,122,592 37,363 1,085,229 

CIAP Harbor Stormwater 1, 100,000 149,865 950,135 

CDBG Front Beach 748,199 378,841 369,358 

Sewer Rehab Phase II 681,500 534,343 147,157 
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0. Prior Period Adjustments 

The prior period adjustments reported on the Statement of Activities (page 17) and the Statement 
of Revenues and Expenses and Changes in Net Position (page 23) and they are the result of 
corrections as follows: 

Governmental Activ itie s: 
1. Implementation ofGASB 68 and 71: 

Net pension liability (measurement date) 
Deferred outflows - contributions made during 

fiscal year 2014 
Total prior period adjustment related to 

GASB 68 and 71 

2. Abandonment of gay-lemon she lter project 

Total 

Business Type Activities: 
1. Implementation of GASB 68 and 71: 

Net pension liability (measurement date) 
Deferred outflows - contributions made during 

fiscal year 2014 
Total prior period adjustment related to 

GASB 68 and 71 

Total Prior Period Adjustments 

P. Subsequent Events 

$ (12,265 ,824) 

215,593 

(1 ,861,184) 

32,714 

(12,050,231) 

(281 ,053) 

(12,331,284) 

(1 ,828,470) 

$ ( 14,159,754) 

Events that occur after the statement of net position date but before the financial statements are 
available to be issued must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure. Management of the City 
of Ocean Springs evaluated the activity of the City through July 25, 2016, and determined there 
were no reportable subsequent events that require disclosure in the notes to the financial 
statements. 
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City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

Budget and Actual - Budget Basis 
General Fund 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2015 

Original Budget Final Budget 
Budgeted Amounts to Final Basis to Actual 

Original Final Variance Actual Variance 
Revenues 

Ad va lorem taxes $ 3,339,928 $ 3,381,635 $ 4 1,707 $ 3,264,577 $ (117,058) 
Licenses and permits 278,000 212,000 (66,000) 28 1,72 1 69,72 1 
Franchise fees 870,000 890,000 20,000 889,643 (357) 
r ntergovemmenta I 5,689,000 6,485,4-+2 796,4-+2 6,218,4-+2 (267,000) 
Federal & state grants 247,850 l ,281, 131 1,033,28 1 848,410 (432,721) 
Charges for services 634,000 572,800 (61 ,200) 539,055 (33,745) 
Fines and forfietures 880,000 865,000 ( 15,000) 873,455 8,455 
Other 145,000 145,000 132.071 (12,929) 

Total revenues 12,083,778 13.833,008 l.749230 13.047,374 (785,634) 

Expenditures 
General Government 

Executive - Mayor 
Personnel services 150,781 155,1 08 4,327 154,714 394 
Supplies 4,700 3,430 ( 1,270) 2,338 1,092 
Other services and charges 177,050 206,485 29,B5 204,467 2,0 18 
Capita l outlay 2,197 2,197 2, 197 

Total 332.53 l 367220 34,689 363,716 
. 

3,504 

Legis lative -Board of Aldermen 
Personnel services 202.034 203,595 1,561 202,735 860 
Supplies 1,312 1,312 1,38 1 (69) 
Other services and charges 10,433 453,849 4-+3,416 454,233 (384) 

Capital outlay l ,231 1,231 345 886 
Total 212,467 659,987 4-+7,520 658,694 1293 

Finance 
Personnel services 371 ,601 381 ,671 10,070 377,387 4284 

Supplies 7,800 8,732 932 5,719 3,013 
Other services and charges 18 1,500 253,400 71,900 251 , 11 0 2,290 
Capita l outlay 33,000 33.000 32,993 7 

Total 560,90 1 676,803 115.902 667.209 9.594 
Human Resources 

Personnel services 110,366 l 12,678 2,312 l I l ,781 897 
Supplies l , 150 1,150 565 585 
Other services and charges 551 ,0 14 512,582 (38,432) 507,551 5,03 1 
Capital outlay 

Total 662.530 626,410 (36.120) 619,897 6.513 
Total General Government 1,768.429 2.330.420 56 1,99 1 2.309.516 20,904 

( Continued) 

51 



City of Ocean Springs, Miss issippi 
Sche dule of Reve nues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

Budget and Actual - Budge t Bas is 
Gene ral Fund 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2015 

Original Budget Final Budget 

Budgeted Amounts to Final Basis to Actual 

Expe nditures (Continued) Original Final Variance Actual Variance 

Planning and Community Develop 
Personnel services 351,910 343,377 (8,533) 334,075 9,302 

Supplies 25,650 26,981 l ,331 34,547 (7,566) 

Other services and charges 167,200 154,015 (13,185) 194,545 (40,530) 

Capital outlay 1,042.524 1,042,524 360,898 681,626 

Total 544,760 1,566.897 1,022,137 924.065 642,832 

Public Safety 
Personnel services 5,187,002 5,231 ,591 44,589 5,224,621 6,970 

Supplies ·333,650 286,482 (47,168) 270,725 15,757 

Other services and charges 321,190 395,608 74,418 391,620 3,988 

Capital outlay 750 (750) 734 (734) 

Total 5,842,592 5,913,681 71,089 5,887,700 25,981 

Public Works 
Personnel services 1,203,764 1,223,758 19,994 1,217,093 6,665 

Supplies 343,250 325,296 (17,954) 262,247 63,049 

Other services and charges 682,550 675,28 l (7,269) 653,233 22,048 

Capital outlay 420,000 342.753 (77).47) 305,773 36,980 

Total 2,649.564 2,567,088 (82,476) 2,438,346 128,742 

Culture and Recreation 
Personnel services 978,422 962,827 (15,595) 961,790 l,037 

Supplies 222,400 230,188 7,788 178,928 51,260 

Other services and charges 436,525 433,794 (2,731) 514,940 (81,146) 

Capital outlay 10.000 172.522 162,522 51.859 120,663 

Total 1,647,347 1,799,331 151,984 1,707.517 91,814 

Total expenditures 12.452.692 14.177.417 1,724,725 13,267.144 910).73 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures (368.914) (344.409) 24,505 (219,770) 124.639 

Othe r financing sources (uses): 
Interest earned 5,000 5,000 4,726 (274) 

Loan proceeds 250,000 250,000 250,000 

BP settlement 615 ,089 615,089 615,089 

Insurance proceeds 20,000 29,000 9,000 29,862 862 

Sale of assets 5,000 5,000 7,345 2,345 

Transfers in 500,000 500,000 550,000 50,000 

Transfers (out) (824,067) (824,067) (6,333) 817,734 

Total other financing sources (uses) 530,000 580.022 50.022 1.450,689 870,667 

Net change in fund balances 161,086 235,613 74,527 1,230,919 995,306 

Fund balances, beginning of year 191,786 941.357 941J57 

Fund balances, end of year $ 352.872 $ 1.176.970 $ 2,172276 

(See Note IIA.) 

Th e Accompany ing Notes are an Integral Pare of the Financial Statements. 
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City of Ocean Springs, i\l iss issippi 
Schedule of Re venues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

Budget and Actual - Budget Basis 
Food and Beverage Tax Fund 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 20 15 

Revenue s 
[ntergovernmenta I 
Tota l re venues 

Expenditures 
Public Sa fety 

Capital outlay 
Economic Development 

Capita l outlay 
Culture and Recrea tion 

Capita l outlay 
Debt Service 

Principal 
Interest 

Total 
Tota l expenditures 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over expenditures 

O the r financing s ources (us es) : 
Transfers in 
Transfers ( out) 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund bala nces, beginning of yea r 
Fund balances, end of year 

(See Note I IA.) 

Budgeted Amounts 
0 rigina I Fina I 

Original 
to Final 

Variance 

$ 1.050,000 $ 1.050,000 _ $ ___ _ 

1.050.000 1,050.000 

71,000 7 1,000 

85,103 85,103 

39 1,939 39 1,939 
50 1,958 50 1,958 

1,050,000 1.050.000 
1.050,000 1.050,000 

$ $ 

Budget 
Basis 

Actual 

$ 1207.848 
1,207,848 

32,093 

73,425 

20,494 

390,628 
505.665 

1,022.305 
1.022.305 

185,543 

49,98 1 

49.98 1 

235,524 

54.3 18 
$ 289.842 

Th e Accompany ing Notes are an Integral Part of th e Financia l Statements. 
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Final Budget 
to Actual 
Variance 

$ 157,848 
157,848 

(32,093) 

(2,425) 

64,609 

1,3 l l 
(3,707) 
27,695 
27,695 

130, 153 

49,98 1 

49.98 1 

180, 134 



City of Ocean Springs, Mis s issippi 
Required Supplementary lnfonnation 

Schedule of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pe nsion Liability 
PERS 

Last 10 Fiscal Year.. * 

City's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 

City's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) 

City's covered-employee payroll 

City's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a percentage 
of its covered-e!Tl)loyee payroll 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pens ion liability 

$ 

$ 

20 15 

0. 11 % 

17,003 ,83 1 

6,862,749 

247.77% 

61.700% 

* The amOLmts presented fo r each fiscal year were determined as of the measurement date of 6/30/ l 5 

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for l O years. However, 
GASB 68 was implemented in FYE 9/30/ 15, and, until a foll I 0-year trend is compiled, the City has 
only presented infunnation fo r the years in which infunnation is available. 

n,e Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of th e Financial Statements. 
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City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi 
Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of District Contributions 
PERS 

Last 10 Fiscal Years * 

Actuarially calculated required contribution 

Actual contnbutions in relation to the 
contractua lly required contribution 

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

City's covered-employee payroll 

Contnbutions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 

2015 

$ 1,078,020 

1,078,020 

$ 

6,844,571 

15.75% 

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, 
GASB 68 was implemented in FYE 9/30/15, and, until a full IO-year trend is compiled, tbe City has 
only presented infonnation for the years in which information is available. 

n,e Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of the Financial Statements. 
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Supplemental Information 
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Assets 

Cash 
Receivables: 

Ta:,cs 

Grnnts 
Due from other Jl1nds 

Total assets 

Liahilitics & Fund B:1lance 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 

Retainage payable 
Due to other fonds 

Tota l liabi lities 

Fund balance 
Restricted for: 

Economic development 
Library support 
Public sa fety 
Capital projects 

Total li.111d balances 

Total liahilit ies and li1ncl 
balance 

City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi 
Comhining Balance Sheet 

Non-MaJor Governmental Fuml~ 
September 30, 2015 

S pccial Revenue Funds 
Special Paid 

f'ines and Fire 

Tourism Librn1::r f'orfieturcs Protection 

$ 40 $ 53 ,950 $ 1,350 $ 19,268 

4,063 4,02-l 

238,039 
2,395 

6,498 57,974 239,389 19,268 

40 196 3,600 2,010 

40 196 3,600 2,010 

6,458 
57,778 

235,789 17,258 

6,458 57,778 ~789 17,258 

$ 6,498 $ 57,974 $ 239,389 $ 19,268 

57 

EMG 
Disaster 

Is sac Total 

$ $ 74,608 

8.087 
57,877 295,9 16 

2.395 

___ 57~877 _ 38 1,006 

5,846 

57,877 57,877 

57,877 63,723 

6.458 
57,778 

253,0-l7 

3 17,283 

$ 57,877 $ 38 1,006 

Continued 



Assets 

Cas h 
Receivables: 

Taxes 
Crt-arits 

Due from ot her funds 

Tota l as sets 

Liabilities & Fund Balance 

Liabilities : 
Accounts payable 
Retainage payable 
Due to otht:r fund s 

Tota l liabi lities 

Fund balance: 
Res tricted for: 

Economic development 
Library s upport 
Public safe ty 
Cap ita l projects 

To tal limd balances 

Tota l liabi lit it:s and limcl 
balance 

CDBG 
Mary 

O'Kccfc 

$ 10,000 $ 

10,000 

10,000 

__ I_0,000 

$ 10,000 $ 

City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi 
Combining llalancc Sheet 

Non-Major Governmental Fumls 
September 30, 20 15 

Capital Projects Funds 
CDBG CIA I' STP Downtown 
Front 
Reach 

Harbor Government Revita li:m tio n 
Imp rovemen ts Street - Phase II Construct io n 

$ $ 8.230 $ 

107,6 10 64,756 8,872 

107.6!0 64.756 8.230 8.872 

12.305 
10,824 

102,277 4 1,627 8,872 

102.277 64.756 8.872 

5,333 8,230 

5,333 8,230 

107,610 $ 64,756 $ 8,230 $ 8,872 

Th e Accompanying No te.\· are an Integral Part oft he Financial State111ents. 
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Non-
Ma,jor 

Total Total All 

$ 18,230 $ 92,838 

8,087 
181 ,238 

,. 
7 15, 193 

2,395 ---
199,468 580.474 

12,305 18, 151 
10,824 10,824 

152,776 2 10,653 

175,905 239.628 

6,458 
57,778 

253,047 
23,563 23.563 

23,563 340.846 

$ 199,468 $ 580,474 



City of Ocean S prings , Miss issippi 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures ~me.I Changes in Fu nd Balances 

Non-Major Govern mental Funds 
for the Year Ended September 30, 20 15 

S pcl'ial Hcwnnc Funds 
Specia l Paid EMG 

fines and Disaster Fire 

Tourism Librar}'. Forlie tures Issac Pro tection Tota l 

Revenues 
Ad va lo n.: 111 taxes $ $ 171 ,493 $ $ $ $ 171 ,493 

Fines and forfieture s 18,606 18,606 

Inte rgovernmen ta l 36,874 94,905 13 1,779 
Cn·,rnts 238,039 9, 199 247,238 

Tota l revenues 36,874 17 1,493 256.645 9, 199 94,905 569, 116 

Expenditures 
Cu 1Tent : 

Public safety 500 9,378 9,878 

Public works 9, 199 9, 199 

fa:onomic development 35,79 I 35,79 1 

Culture and recreation 177,769 177,769 

Capi ta l o utlay: 
Public salety 32,980 32,980 

Econo mic development 
Culture and recreation 

Debt service: 

Prin cipa l 63 ,659 63,659 

Int eres t 6.282 6,282 

Tota l e:>.penditu res 35,791 177,769 33.480 9. 199 79.319 _335,558 

Excess of revenu es over 

(unde r) expenditures 1,083 (6,276) 223, 165 15,586 233,558 

Other lin ancing sources (uses): 

T r.:in s f~rs in 

Trans fcrs out 

Escess (deliciency) ofrevcnues 

and o th er so urces over 

c.,11enditures and o th er uses 1,083 (6,276) 223, 165 15,586 233,558 

fu nd balance , beginning 5.375 64,054 12.6?4 1.672 83,725 

Fund balance, end of year $ 6,458 $ 57,778 $ 235,789 $ $ 17.258 $ 3 17,283 

Conlinued 
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City ofOce:111 S prings, Missis s ippi 
Combining S tatement of Revenues, l.:Xpcnditurcs and Changes in Fund Balanc es 

Non-Major Governmental Fuml~ 
Fo r th e Year Ended Sept ember 30, 20 15 

Capital Pn1.jccts Fuml~ 
CDl3G ST P Ml~M/\ CDBG CD BG CIAP Downtown Non-
Mary Governme nt I lazard Fro nt Fir<:: Sta tio n I ]arbor Rev it a liza tio n Major 

O'Keefe SI ree t - Phase II Mitigation Reach Relocation ...!.!!!P rovements Cons tru ctio n Total Total All 
Revenues 

/\cl va lorem taxes $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 17 1.493 
Fines and fo rfie tu res 18,606 
lntergovemme n tal 13 1,779 

Grants 8,230 235,547 4 243,78 1 49 1.019 

Tota l revenu es 8,230 235.547 4 243,781 8 12,897 

fape nditures 
Current : 

Public safo ty 9.878 

Public works 9, 199 
Eco nomic develop1111.:nt 35.79 1 

Culture an d recreation 4 4 177,773 
Ca pital o utlay: 

Publ ic safety 32.980 
Eco no mic deve lopment 
Culture and recreation 235,547 235,547 235,547 

Debt service: 
Principal 63.659 
Int eres t 6.282 

Tota l expenditures 2}5_,,547 4 235,55 1 57 1, 109 

Excess o f revenues over 
(und er) expend itures 8,230 8,230 24 1,788 

Other fin ancing so urces (us~s): 

Tra ns lers in 5,333 5,333 5,333 

Tra nsfers o ut (8.9-1 2) ___ (4(), 981) (58,923) __ (58.923) 

Excess (deficiency) o f revenues 
and o ther so urces over 
expenditu res and o th er uses 8,230 (8,942) 5.333 (-19,98 1) (45,360) 188,198 

Fund balan ce, beginning 10.000 8.942 49,98 1 68,923 152.648 

rune! balance, end of year $ 10.000 $ 8.230 $ $ 5.333 $ $ $ 
= 

$ 23,563 $ 340.846 

The Accompanying No tes are an Int egral Part 0/1/te Financial S 1ateme111s. 

60 



City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi 
Schedule of Long-Tenn Debt 

September 30, 20 15 

Bal an re Requirement s Year Ended 
Date Original Balnnce New S cptcmhcr S.:~temher 30. 2016 
Iss ued Issue October I. 20 14 Issues Ret irern.:n ts 30,201:i l'rinci~al lnt en:s t 

Cl'ncral Ohli~ation Bonds anti Notes 
Gener.i i Oblig:1tion Note, Series 20 11 04/20/ 11 $ 200,000 $ 83 ,0 10 $ $ 40,987 $ 42,023 $ 42,023 $ 1,063 
General Ohlig:1tinn Note, Series 20 10 12/2 1/ 10 250,000 103.556 5 1, 167 52,389 52,389 1,252 

MS Dev. Bank Spec. Ob li gation Bonds, Series 2009 05/06/09 10,7 10,000 9,325,000 3 10,000 9,015,000 320,000 4 14 ,2% 
MS Develop Authority-386 Mary ·C . O'Kecfe Cen t< 06/0 I /03 500,000 253,-l 11 25 .9 19 227,492 26,8-16 6,-1 30 

General Oblig,1tion Ronds, Series 2009-Peoplcs I:lan l 12/01 /09 4,600.000 3.985.000 170.000 3,8 15.000 185.000 I 34.125 

General Ob lignt ion Note-Bnncnrp Soul h 11 /01 / 13 250.000 250.000 50,000 200,000 50.000 3.706 

Gen.:ral O blig:1tion Note-Coast Communit y [lank 02/ 18/ 15 250,000 250,000 250,000 50.000 5.1 78 

Total General Obligntinn Ronds and Notes 13.999,977 250,000 648.073 13,60 1.90.J 726,258 566.050 

Capital Leases 
Oshkosh Capital - Fire Truck 05/03/ 10 306,954 203.803 3-1 .668 169, 135 30,585 8,524 

I lancock [lank - Fire Truck 12/06/05 535,875 36.635 28.990 7,6-15 7,645 55 
First Securit y Leasing- Musco Lig)11 ing I 0/02/ 10 1,489,000 I, 187,655 8 1.938 1, 105,717 87,350 70.47.J 

Total Capit al Leases 1,428,093 145,596 1,282,497 125,580 79,053 

Total General Long-Term Debt 15.428.070 250.000 793.669 __ 14,884,40 I 851.838 6-15. 103 
-----------

Proprietary Funds Ol'ht 

C ivic Cent er - l lals tead Water Tanks - MS Develop 10/01 /01 273 , 11 5 114 ,637 14.89 1 99,746 15,358 2,818 

M S Develop Cap Loan 9-282-CP-O I 04/01 /0 I 500,000 195,443 27,707 167,736 28,698 4,577 

State Revolving Loan - Sewer SR.r-C280752-01-2 06/ 14/98 1, 100, 100 299,496 85 . 189 2 14,307 88,770 8, 154 

Drinking Water Imp rove DWl-11280035-01-3 06/ 15/0 1 63 -1 ,072 3 16,433 33,555 282,878 34,575 8,01-l 

Drinking Water Imp rove DWl-11280035-02-3 08/ 10/02 1,054,818 70-1,36 1 50,200 65 -1 , 16 1 5 1,986 22,067 

Drinking Wnt er Improve DWl-11280035-03-0 11 / 10/06 1,9-1 3.29.J 1,56 1,933 89,384 1,472.549 91 , 143 27.903 

Drinking Water Imp rove DWl-l 12X0035-04-2 11 / 18/08 1.029.345 765 ,355 48,346 7 17,009 49.297 13.543 

Drinking Water Imp rove DWl-11280035-05-2 09/03/08 835.711 615 ,908 39,7 18 576, 190 40.499 10.875 

MS Devdop Cnp Lonn 4-282-Cl'-O I 12/20/04 328,752 260.869 17,326 243 ,543 17,745 4,715 

MS Dept Environmental-SRF-C280752-02-2 09/01 / 10 1,059, 133 990.895 46.497 944,398 47,3 17 16. 149 

Total Proprietary Funds Debt 5,825 ,330 452.8 13 5,372,5 17 465 ,388 118,815 

Total All $ 2 1.253.400 $ 250.000 $ 1.246,482 $ 20,256,918 $ 1,3 17.226 $ 763,918 

See Independent Auditors' Report. 
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City of Ocean Springs , Mississippi 
Schedule of Surety Bonds for Municipal Officials 

And Other Municipal Employees 

Name Position Company Bond 

Connie M. Moran Mayor McGuire Ins. $ 100,000 

Robert Cox Alderman-at-Large McGuire Ins. 100,000 

John Gill Alderman McGuire Ins. 100,000 

Matt McDonnell Alderman McGuire Ins. 100,000 

Frederick Cody, Jr. Alderman McGuire Ins. 100,000 

Greg Denyer Alderman McGuire Ins. 100,000 

JerryDalgo Alderman McGuire Ins . 100,000 

Michael Impey Alderman McGuire Ins. 100,000 

Shelly Ferguson City Clerk Scott Ins. 100,000 

Mark Dunston Chief of Police Scott Ins . 50,000 

Jennifer Simmons Accountant Beacon Ins. 50,000 

Jennie Heines Court Clerk Scott Ins . 50,000 

Karen Kennedy Deputy City Clerk Scott Ins . 50,000 

Patty Gaston Deputy City Clerk Scott Ins. 50,000 

Geri Straight Parks and Leisure Director Lemon Mohler 50,000 

See Independent Auditors ' Report. 
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Schedule I 

City of Ocean Springs 
Net Posit ion by Component 

Last r~ght Fis,al Years 

f'isca l Year 

20 15 2014 20 13 2012 20 11 20 10 2009 ::'008 
Guvcmmcntal activities 

Net in ves tment in capita l assets $ 31.353,665 $ 31 ,382,569 $ 31,215,299 $ 30,591,229 $ 27,334,794 $ . 28,047,509 $ 22,838,073 $ 24,286,294 
Restricted 1,540.872 1,473,011 1,59 1,039 2,472,307 2,406,098 7,726,863 10,182,864 906,837 
Un restricted (10,713,616) 908,202 (1,634,152) (1,67 1,143) 879,835 1,953,557 1,249,784 6,712,466 

Total govcm mcntal activities net position $ 22,180,9:! I $ 33,763,782 $ 31,17::',186 $ 31,392,393 $ 30,620, 7':.7 $ 37,727,929 $ 34,270,7::' I $ 31,905,597 

Business-type activities 
Net investment in cap ital assets $ 15,95 1,146 $ 15,422,319 $ 15,220,344 $ 15,054,11 5 $ 12,215,993 $ 11 ,949,059 $ 9,734,419 $ 6,817,627 
Res tricted 11 5,732 11 5,457 
Unrestricted (653,765) 1,310,342 1.600,98 1 1,565,779 1,830.3?9 1,858,947 2,369.216 3,247,157 

Total business-type activities net position $ ... _l ~,297,38 1 $ 16.732,66 1 $ 16,82 1,325 $ 16,619,894 $ 14,162,054 $ 13.923,463 $ 12,103,635 $ 10,06.J.784 

Primary gnvcmment 
Net investment in capital assets $ 47,304,811 $ 46,804,888 $ 46,435,643 $ 45,645,344 $ 39,550,787 $ 39,996,568 $ 32,572,492 $ 31,103,921 

Restricted 1,540,872 1,473,011 1,59 1,039 2.472,307 2,52 1,830 7,842,320 10,182,864 906,837 
Unrestricted ( 11 ,367,38 1) 2,218,544 (33,171 ) (105,364) 2,710,164 3,812,504 3,619.000 9,959,623 -

Total primary govcmment net position $ 37,478,30:! $ 50.496.'143 $ 47.993,5 11 $ 48.012,287 $ 44,782,781 $ 51 ,65 1,392 $ 46,374.356 $ 41,970,381 

See Independent A uditors' Report. 
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C ity o f'O cean S prings 
Chan ges in Net Pos itio n 
Las t Eig ht Fiscal Years 

(a <-·c rua l hllsis olacc..·011111 i11g) 

Fiscal Year 

20 15 20 1-1 20 13 20 12 2011 20 10 2009 2008 
E.~pcnscs 
Cbvernment al activities : 

Ccneral govem me nt $ 1,985.235 $ 2.0-12.967 $ 2,003.-119 $ 2.0-19, 162 $ 1,508.639 $ 3.5-18.837 $ 3.876.9 15 $ 3.908.28 1 
Public sa f<.: ty 7,337. 130 6.436.3 12 5,960.70-I 6,569,5.J-I 6, 10 1,302 8. 165,9-1 7 7.8-12, 149 6,57-1.0 17 
Public works 2,40 1,806 2.98-1.549 3,408.672 3,483,247 3, 185,30 1 4,528.670 3.0 17.789 4.498,365 
I lea lth and welfare 369,378 226,5-19 235.0 11 589.7 19 1, 167.99 1 1.07 1.237 
Eco no mic development 8(>4 ,805 47 1,703 60 1,739 1,045,05-1 1,0 10, 11 9 1,339, 111 1,348, 123 1,385,885 
Cu It u re and rec re at ion 2,45-1,485 2,325.676 2,2 13.6-10 1, 183,697 855,548 786,804 2, 185.328 2.055,649 
Interest o n lo ng -te rm debt 697,389 695.554 800,75-1 765,498 958,98 1 836,5 16 4 10,199 128,508 

Tota l g.ovt!rnnientu l activities expense 16, 11 0,228 15. 183,JIO 15,223.939 15,685,921 1-1,787,88 1 20,277, 122 __ I 8_.6_80~03 18,550,705 

Husincss-type activities 

\\lat e r 1,633.6'.!8 1.56 1.283 1,822,438 1,552,498 1,533,99 1 1,4 17.6 19 1,5 16. 152 1.662,809 
Se,.vcr 2,8 16.96-1 2.7-1-1 .509 2,-187.903 2.-1 28,229 2,3-14 .6 19 2.38 1.526 2.656.45-1 2.809,056 
c~,rhage 1,289 11 5 1.1 20,016 1, 109, 150 1.360,666 1,3-1 5, 174 1.355.022 1.380,072 

Total business-type activit ies e,,:pense 5,739,7 17 5,-125.808 5,4 19.49 1 5,34 1,393 5,2:!3,784 5, 154. 167 5,552.678 4.47 Ul65 
Total prinmry gove111nient expen sc:::s $ 2 1,8-19.')-15 $ 20.609, 11 8 $ 20,6-13.430 $ 2 1.027.3 14 $ 20,0 11.665 $ 25.43 1,289 $ 2-l.233. 18 1 $ 23.022.570 

Prognuu ll.C\'CIIIIC 

Goven11ne ntal activities: 
Ch a rges for se rv ices : 

C',e nera l govemment $ 56.-13 1 $ 76.969 $ 476.349 $ 20.000 $ 20.000 $ 20.000 $ 20.000 $ 20.000 
Public safe ty 889,96 1 880.585 770,608 892.431 69 1,662 720, 148 905.06 1 700,0-1 1 
Eco nomic development 28 1,72 1 

Culture and recreation 474,237 513,29-l 50-1 .879 477,2 15 418,209 -1 62,2-16 424.052 1,549.523 
O pe ratin g grants and contributio ns 634,624 477.929 359. 196 6 19. 199 56 1,808 3. 184.488 2, 175.376 1.893,903 
Capital grant s a nd contributio n s 983,403 400.069 776.208 2.6 16,957 3,69 1.403 5.88 1.692 4.005.'123 138.017 

Total gove1111nentnl ac t ivities rc:::venues 3,320J77_ 2,348.846 2,887,240 4,6?5,80? 5,383,082 10.268,574 7,529,9 12 4.30 1,48-l 

Rus iness-type activities : 
Cha rges for se rvices: 

Water 2,256.803 2. 14-1.576 2, 18 1.566 2.065,583 2, 193.325 2.039. 150 2. 128.887 1.966,47-l 

Sewer 2.926.054 2.873,575 2,728.627 2.7 14.609 2,756.39 1 2,538.901 2.486.083 2.570. 19-l 

Ga rbage 1,20 1, 122 1.093.266 1,097,6 12 1,353,8-1 6 1,359,412 1,360.004 1.222.282 
Capit a l grant s and contributio ns 2-18,928 75.3 19 225. 19 1 2.264,285 282.5 15 1.797.5 13 2.058.208 391.526 

Total business -t y pe activities revenues 6,632,907 6, 186,736 6,232,9% 8,398,323 6,59 1,643 7,735,568 7,895,460 4,928, 19-l 

Total pri111ary gove1n1ncnt reven ues $ 9,953.284 $ 8.535.582 $ 9. 120.236 $ -
13,07-1. 1 J5 __1___l_!_,_ 97 4. 725 $ 18.00-l. 1-12 $ 15.425.372 $ 9.229.678 

(Contin ued) 
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Sch<!du l" 2 (Continw.:u) 

City of Ocean Springs 
Chan ges in Ne t Position 

L.1 s t Eight f'iscal Years 
(ac:crua l basis <~{acco1111 t i11g) 

f'iscal Year 

'JO JS 20 14 20 13 20 12 20 11 20 10 2009 200R 

Net (E,pcnse)/ Rcv e nue 
Govern111en tnl activities $ (12,789,851) $ ( 12.834,464) $ (12,336,699) $ ( 11.060, II 9) $ (9,404,799) $ (10,008,548) $ (11,150.591) $ ( 14.249,221) 
Hus iness -t y p e activities 89'.l, 190 760,9'l8 813,505 3,056,9'.lO l ,'.167,859 2,58 1.401 2,34'l,78'J 456,.-P<) 
Total prirnary .govemrne nt n e t expense_$ __ ( 11.8%,66 1) -~ _{P.07351<,) $ ( 11.573, 194) $ (8,0o:1, 189) $ (8.03(,.940) $ (7,4.,7.147) __J;_ (8,807.809) $ ( 1.1 .792.892) 

(Cneral revenues and o th er changes 

in net positic~ n 
Govcnune ntal activities : 

Ta~s : 
Pro pe11 y ta N:!s $ 3,754,437 $ J .875.168 $ 3,848,295 $ 3,762,29 1 $ 3,863,354 $ 3,996,73 1 $ 4, 156,976 $ J.75 1,701 
Sales, res taurnnt , and h ote l tn:ses 6, 171J,,J IO 5,413,560 5,55 1,490 5,,17'), 966 5,400,907 5 ,39'.l.867 5,449,842 5 ,358,395 

Franchise taxes 884,084 869,502 810,308 797,59-1 848,966 882.162 835,514 850,232 

Licenses and pe1111its 266,946 25 1, 193 173,232 252,962 159, 163 236,765 194,522 

In tergovc1111Tk!ntal 1,414 ,28 1 1.373.897 1,374 ,500 1,0 19, 172 1.435,--120 1, 159.807 2,138,779 1.235. 178 

111' se ttlement 615,089 

Co1111n1111ity disaster loan forgiveness 3,007, 123 328,43 1 

Unallowa ble FEMA c loseo ut cos ts (515,666) 

l11vest1nent enrnings and ntisc 190,973 207, 193 184,298 134,787 424,204 394,3 13 329,268 375,248 

Transfers 500,000 600.000 612,074 600,000 300.000 800,000 368,57 1 450,000 

Total gove rnniental activities 13,538,274 15,613.389 12, 116.492 11.%7,04 2 12.854.2-M __ _ll,786.043 1'.1,515,7 15 12.2 15.27<, 

Business-type activities 
lnvest1nent earnings and n,isc (2,066) 910 5,773 38.427 <>4.640 49,229 

Transfers (500,000) (600.000) (612,074) (600,000) (300,000) (800.000) p68.571) (450,()()0) • 
Tota l business-type activities (500,000) (6()') ,066) (612.074) (59'),090) (294,227) (761 ,57'.l) (303 ,931) (--100.77 1) 

Total pri1nary go\!e1111ncnt $ I '.\038,274 $ 15.011.323 $ 11 ,504 ,418 $ I 1.367,952 $ 12,560,017 $ 12,024 ,470 $ 13,2 11.784 $ 11.814,505 

Chan ge in n et positio n 
Govern nX!ntal ac tivities $ 748,423 $ 2.778.925 $ (220.207) $ 906,923 $ 3.449.445 $ 2,777,495 $ 2 ,365. 124 $ (2.033 ,<J-15) 

Bus in ess -t y p e activiti"s 39.1, 190 158,862 ~Ol ,4J I 2,457,840 l ,073 ,63'J 1,819.828 2,038,851 55,558 

Total prilnary goven1111ent $ _ _l,1'1_1_,61 3 $ 2,937,787 $ (18.776) $ 3,364,763 $ 4,523,077 $ 4,597,323 $ 4 ,403.975 $ (1 ,978.387) 

See Independent Auditors' Report. 
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Genera l fund 
Nonspendable for prepaids 
Assigned for: 

Subsequent yea r appropriations 
Unassigned 

Tota l ge nera l fund 

Other governmenta l fu nds 
Restricted for: 

Library support 
Debt service 
Economic deve lopment 
Capital projects 
Public safety 
Tota l all other 

governmental funds 

Total governmenta l funds 

-0 

~ 

" C m 

:u 
m 
() 
m 
< m 
0 

20 15 

$ 206,381 

2,813,505 
3,019,886 

57,778 
918,884 
469,293 

23,563 
253,047 

1,722,565 

$ 4,742,45 1 

City of Ocean Springs 
Fund Balances, Governmenta l Funds 

Last Eight Fisca l Years 

Fisca l Yea r 
20 14 20 13 20 12 20 11 2010 2009 2008 

$ 232,638 $ 316,332 $ 258,476 $ 187,734 $ 187,734 $ 187,734 $ 187,734 

669,647 724,090 1,292,860 
1,261,087 1,44 1,139 1,364,977 822,898 2,-l94,834 1,864,373 5,3 13,814 

__ _ _1_@3,725 1,757,47 1 1,623,453 1,680,279 3,406,658_ _ 3,344,967 5,50 1,548 

64,054 64,11 6 70,632 80,206 83,402 45,892 29,827 
1, 11 5,549 1,216,507 1,350,049 1,682,368 1,934,171 702,139 644,165 

210,189 139,239 ' 71,742 2,490,656 2,538,467 9,46 1,187 492,989 
68,923 92,755 758,789 723,730 5,794,692 1,629,869 1,973,596 
14,296 78,422 22 1,095 256,524 190,537 259,669 156,183 

1,473,011 1,59 1,039 2,472,307 5,233,484 10,54 1,269 12,098,756 3,296,760 

$ 2,966,736 $ 3,348,510 $ 4,095,760 $ 6,913,763 $ 13,947,927 $ 15,443,723 $ 8,798,308 

See Independent Auditors ' Report . 

• 66 



C ity o f Ocean S prings 
C lw n ges Ill Fund B alances . C'.ioven 11nc111 a l Fun ds 

Las t E ig ht Fisca l Years 

Fisca l Year 
20 15 ?0 1-1 ?OIJ "0 1-, ?O I I 20 10 2009 2008 

R evenues 
T axes 

1.1ro p e11y $ 3 , 75-1 .-137 $ 3 ,875. 168 $ 3 .8-18.295 $ 3 .762.29 [ $ 3 ,863,35-1 $ 3 ,996,73 1 $ -1 . 156.976 $ 3 ,75 1.70 I 
Su h:s, res t au ra nt & h o tel 6 ,29-1.3 1-1 5 ,-113 .560 5 .55 1,-190 5 ,-1 79.966 5 , 130,9 11 5 .393 ,867 5 ,-1-19 .8-1 2 5 ,358,395 
Fn.111 c h ise 88-1 ,08-1 869,502 8 10 ,308 797,59-1 8 -1 8.966 882. 162 835 ,5 1-1 850,232 

L ice nses nn d p e nnit s 28 1.72 1 266,946 25 1. 193 173 .232 252 ,962 159, 163 236,765 19 -1 .522 
I 1tll.!rgove r11 rnentul 1,299,176 1,373,897 1,374,500 1,0 19 , 172 1,705 ,4 16 I , 159,807 2 , 138,779 1,235 , 178 
Gra nt s l ,6 15 ,927 877,998 I , 135 ,40-1 3 ,236, 156 4 ,253 ,2 11 9 ,066, 180 6 , 180,799 2 ,03 1,920 
C h a1·g...:s fo r serv ice 530,668 590.263 98 1.228 497,2 15 438,209 482.2-16 4-44.052 1,569.523 
17i11 cs a nd lb rfoits 892.06 1 880,585 770.608 892.-13 I 69 1,662 720, 1-18 905,06 1 700,0 -11 

M 1sce lla 11 eo u s 160."53 17 1.005 59.?73 44 ,603 ? )6 .756 '>R1 .735 '??J ,8"6 3?J.-195 

To ta l rt:VC llll CS 15 .71? ,ll-l l 1-1 ,J l l! .9?-I 1-1,78? , '>99 15 ,90" .660 17 .40 1.4-l7 22. 14-l ,O.l9 70 57 1,6 1-1 I C> ,0 15 ,007 

Exp e nditures 
Ge n c rnl govenune nt I .SJ 1,556 1,999.380 1,987,0-1 1 2 ,0 -1 2 ,570 1,4 78,4 59 2 ,3 11 ,907 2 ,626.926 2 .83-l ,7 18 

Public sule ty 6 ,363,590 6 , 1-1 1.786 5 ,909,982 6 ,376,293 5 ,796,-l O--I 7 .829.679 7 .665,662 6 .3 -19 .70 1 
Pub lic works 2 ,089,360 2 ,435,682 2 ,673 ,807 2 ,934,660 2 ,689,7 16 4 ,4-11 ,925 4 ,22 1.372 -l ,687,0 -19 

I lca hh 011 d , vc l f.u-e 3<,9,378 226,5-19 239,6 10 589,7 19 1, 160, 155 1,07 1,237 

Eco n o mic ch.:vdnpn k!n t 508,-1 89 3-16 ,5 -1 6 -1 37,957 962 ,929 98 1,749 1, 193 ,852 1,25 1,395 1,23-1,-139 

C ultu1·e an d rec rea t io n 1,695,9-15 1,923 , 128 1,803,769 925.385 727,7 14 778,933 2 ,527, 162 1.4 15 ,0 -18 
C'upital o utlay 1,0 16.386 1,079,7 16 1,24 1,449 3 ,9 16 ,899 I 1,4 J 1.835 11 ,298,37 1 6 . 103,359 2 ,606,790 

D e bt se rv ice 
Pn11 c ipal 793,669 736,292 7J9,2 -l 6 725 , 188 6 14 ,309 1,835,378 122, 107 36 1, I 6-I 

Int eres t 67 1.0 -19 697.807 7 18 12 1 74'> .95 1 837.672 65 1.075 3 11 .476 123.593 

To t a l e .xp e nditurcs 15 .339.-1 2? 15.586.886 15 .750.982 19 .2 16.59-l 25 ,698,013 __ _ 3 l.4_ 12 .357 24.829.-159 19 .6 12 . 50'> 

Excess o f revenu es over 
(under ) exp e nd itu res 373,4 19 ( J ,767.96'>) (968 ,683) (3 ,J 13 .9J•I ) (8 ,296,566) (9.?68 ,3 18) (-l ,'>57 .8-1 5 ) (3 .597,-1 95) 

O th e r finan c in g. so urces ( uses) 
Proceed s or d ebt 250,000 250.000 756,95-1 6 , 180,23 I 10 ,428 .9 -1 6 705 ,06 1 

In suran ce p rocee ds 29.862 3-1. 157 109,500 30.72 1 176.707 65,882 95, 155 -4 2 ,2 13 

Sn le o f cu p1tal asse t s 7 ,J-l5 2 ,0 30 15 ,525 59,463 30,74 1 44 ,697 10,587 9 ,540 

131' se ltlc 1ncn t 6 15 ,089 

U n idlowub le FEMA Cos ts (5 15 ,666) 

Tran s fc rs in 56-1,256 608 .873 1,3 17 ,009 660,905 -l 10 ,628 1,22 1,386 1,837,862 1,799.05 1 

T ran s li!rs o ut (6-1 ,256_) (8 .873) (70-1 ,935) (60,905) ( 11 0 ,6?8) (42 1,386) ( 1,469.29 1) ( 1.349.05 1) 

To tul o th e r 1i11a11 c i11 g so urces 
a nd ( u ses) 1,402,?96 886, I 87 22 1 433 690. 184 1,264,40'> 7 ,090,8 10 10 903 ,?59 J,?06.8 14 

Net ch an ge in fi.1n cl ba lan ce j; _ _ l_._7_75 .7 15 $ (38 1.775) 'I, (747.250) $ (2,623,750) $ (7.03'> , 16-l) $ (2 . 177.508) $ 6 .6-15,4 1-l $ (2.390.68 1) 

Deb t serv ice as u percent age of 
n o 11 cn p it a l exv e nd1tures 

.. 
11.39% 10 .97% 11.1 7% 10 .6 1°/o I L. J l o/o 14 . 11 % 2 .37% 2 .9J 1Yo 

See Independent Auditors · Report. 
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City of Ocean Springs 
Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property 

Last Eight Fiscal Years 

(amounts expressed in thousands) 

Real Property (I) Personal Property Utilities Automobiles 

Fiscal Assessed Actual Assessed Actual Assessed 

Year Value Value Value Value Value 
--
2015 138,329 1,011,177 10,280 68,533 10,260 

2014 139,646 1,020,804 10,206 68,040 10,211 

2013 139,370 1,018,787 10,191 67,940 9,090 

2012 138,120 1,009,649 9,842 65,613 8,888 

2011 136,567 998,297 9,910 66,067 9,119 

2010 145,007 1,059,993 9,428 62,853 8,982 

2009 138,661 1,0 13,604 9,328 62,187 11 ,669 

2008 106,568 779,006 10,108 67,387 8,854 

2007 102,062 746,067 8,086 53,907 8,260 

( 1) C lass 1 - residential, owner occupied is assessed at 10% of true value 

C lass 2- commercial is assessed at 15% of true value 

Actual 

Value 

68,400 

68,073 

60,600 

59,253 

60,793 
59,880 

77,793 

59,027 

55,067 

Above schedule uses estimated. combined assess ment ratio of 13.68% for real property 

Assessed 

Value 

20,527 

18,591 

18,183 
16,098 

15,804 

17,814 

19,299 

30,058 

29,954 

See independent Auditors' Report. 
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Actual 

Value 

68,423 

61,970 

60,610 

53,660 

52,680 
59,380 

64,330 

I 00, I 93 

99,847 

Schedule 5 

Total 
Assessed Actual Assessed 

Value Value to Actual 

179,396 1,2 16,534 14.75% 
178,654 l;J.18,887 14.66% 

176,834 1,207,937 14.64% 
172,948 1,188,176 14.56% 
171,400 1, 177,837 14.55% 
181,23 1 l;J.42,106 14.59% 
178,957 1,2 17,9 14 14.69% 

155,588 1,005,613 15.47% 
148,362 954,887 15.54% 



C ity of Ocean S p1ings, Mississippi 
01·ig inal Budget Recaps 

Ce neml Fund Only 
f'or the Lnst Eight Fisca l Years 

Fisl·al Ye:u·s Ending Septemher 30 
Re ve nues 21115 2 014 2013 2012 2011 2010 21109 2008 

Ad va lnrem taxes $ 3,339,928 $ 3,3-D,639 $ 3,278,225 $ 3. 144,6 17 $ 3, 154, 198 $ 3,42 1,085 $ 3,476,723 $ 3,362,708 
Licenses and permits 278,000 239,000 195,000 203.000 26 1,000 220,000 209,000 4-10.000 
franc hise fees 8-70,000 820,000 920,000 920.000 920,000 905,000 905,000 757.000 
Inte rgove rnmental 5.689,000 5.689,000 5,672,500 5.3 10.627 5.72-1,627 5.902,336 5,9-12.705 6. 157.000 
Federal & stale grants 247,850 2-17,850 184,000 1,90 1,006 2,207,57 1 2,456,868 3,8 10.9-16 3,665.36-1 
C hnrges for services 63-1,000 634,000 733,500 607.000 472,500 467.500 1,838.750 1,6 10.600 
Fines & forlietures 880,000 880.000 790.000 665,000 730,000 695,000 650,000 487.000 
O the r 145,000 120,000 100.000 70,000 180,000 94,650 3 16,000 507,900 

Tota l revenues 12,083,778 11 ,973 ,489 11 ,873,225 12,82 1,250 13,649,896 14, 162,439 17, 149, 124 16,987,572 

Exrenditurcs 
Gcm:rnl Government 

Executive - Mayor 332,53 1 340,765 452.084 585,620 572,843 636,2 11 652.602 599.798 
Legis la tive -Board of A lde rmen 212,467 206,697 203,360 306,94 1 270,254 469,029 541.9 10 482,324 
Finance 560,90 1 555,820 559,93 1 570,050 572,982 599,480 575,984 625,531 
1 lumnn Resources 662,530 654,97 1 747,334 78 1,583 7 15,364 727,065 7 16,536 88 1,268 

Tota l General Government 1,768,-129 1,758,253 1,962.709 2.2-1-1 , 19-1 2, 13 1,-1-13 2,-13 1,785 2,487,032 2,588,92 1 

Planning & Community Deve lop 5-14,760 484,552 4 12,258 679.869 1, 144,948 1,574 ,630 1,758,776 2,345,685 
Public Snrety 5,842,592 5,73-1,902 5,8 15,358 5,988, 17-1 6,062,093 7,095,588 7,225,502 6,083,7 12 
Public Works 2.6-19,564 2.8 10,954 2,876,538 3,033,659 3,9 13,030 4,72 1,996 6,200,0-14 5,922.856 
C ulture & Recrea tion 1.647,3-17 1.596,479 1,629,44-1 1,598.692 1,5 10,472 1.982,898 2,055,463 2.688.638 

Dehl Service 25.523 25,523 

Tota l expenditu res 12,452,692 12,385, 140 12,696,307 13,54-1.588 14,761,986 17,806,897 19,752,340 19,655,335 

Excess ( deficiency) of revenues 

ove r expenditures (368.9 14) (4 11.65 1) (823.082) (723.338) ( 1, 11 2,090) (3.644.458) (2,603,2 16) (2.667.763) 

Other financing so urces (uses): 
Issuance or Debt 1.000,000 

Other 30,000 68.033 65.000 76.000 85,000 80,000 

Transfers in (out) 500,000 526,000 600,000 207,500 300,000 524,0 17 1,200,000 1,675,000 

Total other rmancing sources 530,000 594,033 665,000 283.500 385,000 1.604,0 17 1,200,000 1,675.000 

Net change in rund balances 16 1,086 182,382 ( 158.082) (439.838) (727,090) (2.040,441) ( 1,403.2 16) (992,763) 

Fund balances, beginning or year 19 1,786 580,573 1,282, 109 1,66 1,556 3,385,842 5,092,922 5,83 1,002 

Fund ba lances, end of year $ 352,872 $ 182,382 $ 422,49 1 $ · 842,27 1 $ 934,466 $ 1,345,40 1 $ 3,689,706 $ 4,838,239 

See Independent Auditors' Report. 
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20 15 

Debt Limit (15%) $ 26,909 

Total net GO debt applicable to limit 3,634 

Legal debt margin $ 23,275 

Tota l net debt applicable to the limit as a 

percentage of the debt limit 13.50% 

elf) rn jTI"'\ 
() 1:) ·- rn 

""-= -< ......, 
rn ~ 0 

$ 

$ 

City of Ocean Springs 
Lega l Debt Margin In fo rmation 

Last Eight Fiscal Years 
(amounts expressed in thousand5) 

2014 

26,798 

3,607 

23, 19 1 

13.46% 

Fiscal Yea r 
20 13 20 12 20 11 

$ 26,525 $ 25,942 $ 25,7 10 

3,62 1 3,692 3,5 10 

$ 22,904 $ 22,250 $ 22,200 

13.65% 14.23% 13.65% 

Legal Debt Margin Calculated 

for Fiscal Year 2013 
Assessed Value 
Debt limit ( 15% of assessed value) 

Debt a pplicable to limit : 
General obligation bonds 
Debt service funds ava ilable 

Legal debt margin 

See Independent A uditors' report 
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20 10 

$ 27,185 

3,497 -

$ 23,688 

12.86% 

2009 

$ 26,844 

$ 26,844 

0.00% 

$ 179,396 

$ 

$ 

2008 

23,338 

23,338 

0.00% 

26,909 

(3,815) 
181 

$ 23,275 
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City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2015 

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA 
Grantor/Prooram Title Number 

U.S. Department of Transportation 
Passed Through Mississippi Department of Public Safety: 
Alcohol Open Container Requirements - DUI Enforcement 20.607 

Total U.S. Department ofTransportation 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
Passed Through Mississippi Development Authority: 
Community Development Block Grant - Community Revitalization 14.228 

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Developmellt 

Office of National Drug Control Policy 
Passed through Mississippi Bureau of Narcotics 
High Intensity Drug Trafficing Areas Program 95.001 

Total Office of ational Drug Control Policy 

U.S. Department of Homeland Security 
Passed Through Mississ ippi Emergency Management Agency: 
Assistance to Firefighters Grant 97.044 

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 

Department of the Interior 
Passed Through Mississippi Department of Marine Resources 
Coastal Impact Assistance Program-Stonnwater Outfall-Front Beach 15 .668 
Coastal Impact Assistance Program-Harbor Stonnwater Management and 

Wetlands Restoration 15.668 

Total passed through Mississippi Dept of Marine Resources 

Passed through National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration 
Department of Commerce-Sea Grant-Adapting Infrastructure 11.41 7 

Department of Commerce-Sea Grant 11.41 7 
Total passed through National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration 
Total Department of the Interior 

U.S. Department of Defense 
Passed Through U.S. Aru1y Corp of Engineers 

Mississippi Environmental Infrastructure Section 592-ARRA 12.124 
Total U.S. Department of the Anny 

Total Expenditures ofFederal Awards 

See Independent Auditors' report 
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Pass-Through Entity Federal 
ldentif~ing Number Exeenditures 

13-TA-31 6- 1 s 20,759 
20.759 

RI 03-282-01-KCR 4 
4 

15PGCP5 722 8250 
8,250 

EMW-2010-FH-005 89 
89 

MS 30-705 95,465 

MS 30-706 139,633 

235,098 

USM-GR03925-R/ 47,900 
MG/CCCAI-30 
MG/CCCAI-30 47,900 

282.998 

554,935 
554.935 

$ 867,035 



City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015 

NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of the 
City of Ocean Springs and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The infonnation in 
this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of 0MB Circular A-133, Audits of States, 
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organi:::ations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule 
may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the presentation of, the basic financial statements. 

NOTE 2. LOAN AGREEMENTS OUTST Al.'\fDING 

Proceeds of various State Revolving Funds were obtained and expended in prior years for sewer 
rehabilitation, capital improvements and drinking water system improvements. The State Revolving 
Funds are financed, at least in part, by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. The Community 
Disaster Loan is financed by the U.S Department of Homeland Security. The principal balance outstanding 
on these loans as of September 30, 2015 was: 

Current Year 

Federal 

Expenditures 

· State Revolving Loan# SRF-C280752-0l-3 $ 

State Revolving Loan# SRF-C280752-02-2 

Drinking Water Systems Improvement: 

Loan# DWI-H280035-01 

Loan # DWI-H280035 -02 

Loan# DWI-H280035 -03 

Loan# DWI-H280035-04 

Loan# DWI-H280035 -05 

73 

Federal 

Loan 

Balance 

$ 173,589 

273,875 

229,131 

536,412 

1,192,765 

580,777 

466,714 

Total 

Loan 

Balance 

$ 214,307 

944,398 

282,878 

654,161 

1,472,549 

717,009 

576,190 
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CU LUMBER. HARVEY 
& ASSOCIATES, P.A. 

Certified Public Accoun1an1s and Consullant, 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIAl~CE AND OTHER !VIATTERS BASED 

ON A.~ AUDIT OF FINAl~CIAL STATEMENTS PERFORlVIED :rn ACCORDAl~CE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Aldermen 
City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in the financial statements 
of Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the 
financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi ("'City"), 
as of and for the year ended September 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements and have issued our report 
thereon dated July 25 , 2016. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and perfonning our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding 
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent 
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance 
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide any opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity ' s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City' s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Culumber, Harvey & Associates 
Certified Public Accountants 

Gulfport, Mississippi 
July 25, 2016 
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CUL UMBER, HARVEY 
& ASSOCIATES, P.A. 

Certified Public Accoun tants and Consuhant~ 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS 
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND .MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR 

PROGRAlVI AND ON L~TERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH 0 MB CIRCULAR A-133 

To the Board of Aldermen 
City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi·s (City's) compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the 0MB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of the City 's major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2015. The 
City's major federal programs are identified in the summary of the auditor"s results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to each of its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City 's major federal programs 
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and 0MB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, 
and Non-Profit Organi=ations. Those standards and 0MB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perfonn 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program 
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City ' s compliance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City ' s compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2015. 
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the type of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our 
audit of compliance, we considered the City's internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with 0MB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the nonnal course ofperfonning their assigned 
functions , to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control o·ver compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
0MB Circular A-1 33. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Culumber, Harvey & Associates, P.A. 
Certified Public Accountants 

Gulfport, Mississippi 
July 25, 2016 
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CU LUMBER, HARVEY 
& ASSOCIATES, P.A. 

Certified Public Accounlanls and Consul1anis 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIAl'\TCE 
WITH MISSISSIPPI'S ST ATE LAWS AND REGULA TIO NS 

To the Board of Aldennen 
City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi as of and for the 
year ended September 30, 2015, which collectively comprise the City ' s basic financial statements 
and have issued our report thereon dated July 25 , 2016. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. 

As required by the state legal compliance audit program prescribed by the Office of the State 
Auditor, we have also performed procedures to test compliance with certain state laws and 
regulations. However, providing an opinion on compliance with all state laws and regulations was 
not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

The results of procedures perfonned to test compliance with certain other state laws and regulations 
and our audit of the financial statements did not disclose any instances of noncompliance with other 
state laws and regulations. 

This report is intended solely for the infonnation and use of the City of Ocean Springs, 
Mississippi's aldermen and management, federal awarding agencies, the Office of the State 
Auditor and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other 
than these specified parties. 

Culumber, Harvey & Associates, P.A. 
Certified Public Accountants 

Gulfport, Mississippi 
July 25, 2016 
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City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015 

SECTION 1 - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS 

Financial Statements: 

1. Type of auditor ' s report issued: 

2. Internal control over financial reporting: 

a. Material weakness identified? 

b. Significant deficiency identified? 

" .) . Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

Federal Awards: 

4 . Internal control over major programs: 

a. Material weakness identified? 

b. Significant deficiency identified? 

5. Type of auditor ' s report issued on compliance for major programs? 

6. Any audit finding(s) reported as required by Section _.51 O(a) 
of Circular A-133? 

7. Identification of major programs: 

CFDA umbers 

12.124 

15.668 

Name of Federal Pro!!ram or Cluster 

U.S. Department of Defense 
MS Environmental Infrastructure Section 592 

U.S. Department of Interior 
Coastal Impact Assistance Program 

8. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs 

9. Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? 
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Unmodified 

No 

None reported 

No 

No 

None reported 

Unmodified 

No 

$300,000 

Yes 



City of Ocean Springs, Mississippi 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended September 30, 20 15 

SECTION 2 - FL'l'ANCIAL ST A TEMENT FINDINGS 

The results of our tests did not disclose any findings related to the financial statements that 
are required to be reported by Government Auditing Standards: 

SECTION 3 - FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

The results of our tests did not disclose any findings and questioned costs related to the 
federal awards. 
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